SAMBRA

CONSTITUTIONAL ASSEMBLY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 16 MARCH 1995 V16

DOCUMENTATION



CONSTITUTIONAL ASSEMBLY

MEETING OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Please note that a meeting of the above committee will take place as indicated below:

Date:

Thursday 16 March 1995

Time:

08h00 - 10h00

Venue:

V16

AGENDA

- 1. Opening
- 2. Minutes: Page 2-6
- 3. V Matters Arising:
 - 3.1 CPG Work Programme For Information Only: Page 7 11
 - 3.2 Penguin Film Proposal Memorandum : Page 12
- Public Participation Programme: Report on Constitutional Public Meetings: Page 13 - 16
- 5. Tabling: Supplementary Report from Theme Committee 4: Page 17 89
- 6. Programme for Monday 20 March 1995 (no documentation)
- 7. . AOB 7.1 WK PROS.

8. Closure

TC'S MOST BARLIUR

CXL CC/CA

HASSEN EBRAHIM

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Enquiries : Ms MM Sparg, Tel 245 031 ext 212, Page 418 4616 Code 6970
SEND OUT A MEMO
GEN HATRON
7.1 GEN PROGRESS NOT WAT WE HOPED IT WE B. ESPEC PROB 4 SMALLER PARTIES COMING UP LE LICETIONS
CHAINS SILLE TAKE WATTER UP - EXPRESS CONCERN
MAN MC SC ME MY BY CHAME MAN MAN MAN BY CHAME THURST
My Thank Thurst

CONSTITUTIONAL ASSEMBLY

MINUTES OF MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING THURSDAY 9 MARCH 1995 (AT 08H00)

PRESENT

RAMAPHOSA MC (CHAIRPERSON)

Chabane OC Sizani RK Eglin C Smith PF Mabandla BS Van Breda A Marais PG Viljoen C

Meshoe KR Wessels L (Deputy Chairperson)

Moosa MV

Apologies: R Meyer (replaced by PG Marais)

In Attendance : H Ebrahim, P Lilienfeld, L Zondo, M Sparg, G Grove, M Ndizba

1. **OPENING**

The meeting opened at 08h05. The agenda was adopted with one amendment: an additional item 7.1 be added titled Travel Arrangements for CA Members in Public Participation Programme.

2. **MINUTES**

The minutes of the meeting of Thursday 2 March 1995 were adopted.

3. MATTERS ARISING

COMMISSION FOR PROVINICAL GOVERNMENT (CPG) 3.1

In response to a concern expressed by Mr Smith on whether the CPG would now table its report in time for the CA programme, the Chairperson indicated that the prescence of CPG experts in the relevant Theme Committees would assist the commission in providing its recommendations to the CA on an ongoing basis It was noted that these reccomendations would include draft text as per the requirements of the Constitution. Mr Ebrahim reported that a revised work programme had been received from the CPG and would be circulated to the next meeting of the Management Committee.

3.2 **PENGUIN FILMS**

Mr Eglin raised concern about the objectives of the proposed television

programme and stated that the DP had difficulties in responding to the request for proposals on content because of this lack of clarity. It was explained by the Chairperson that a memorandum on the objectives had been distributed at an earlier meeting and would be recirculated to refresh the memories of members of the Management Committee. It was also noted that time was of the essence and that preparations for the first programme were already underway.

3.3 ADDITIONAL FUNDING

In response to a query from Mr Van Breda, it was agreed that the agreement to request additional funding from State Expenditure for the advertising of Public Participation events was not an unqualified agreement. Further details would be provided to Management Committee in due course.

3.4 THEME COMMITTEE 1 WAIT TILL NO ARISES

Mr Marais requested guidance on the issue of commissions to allow Theme Committee 1to discuss the document titled "Appointment of Commissions" which had been forwarded to the Theme Committee by Management Committee. It was explained that the Management Committee had not yet taken a position on whether the issues dealt with in this document should be handled in commissions or other structures. It was agreed the Management Committee would await a report from the Theme Committee and then decide on the matter.

3.5 ADJOURNMENT/ RECESS

In reponse to a query from Mr Eglin, it was explained that the adjournment referred to in the minutes was not the recess period. Mr Lilienfeld stated that the dates set for the Easter Recess were 7 - 18 April, and that the period from 18 - 22 April was a period set aside exclusively for CA work.

STREY LUNCHTIME TUES.

4. THEME COMMITTEE ONE REPORT

4.1 GENERAL ASSESSMENT

4.1.1 It was agreed on the suggestion of the Chairperson that a general assessment be conducted first of how the Constitutional Committee is handling reports. He suggested in this regard that the format of the report from Theme Committee 6.4 had proved useful and should be followed by all Theme Committees. A memorandum to this effect had been addressed to all

Theme Committees.

4.1.2 The following was agreed to:

- A period of 7 days would lapse from the time Theme Committee reports were distributed before discussion in the Constitutional Committee. It was agreed however that flexibility would have to apply as some reports would require immediate attention.
- Theme Committees should follow the format followed by Theme Committee 6.4 to facilitate discussion in the Constitutional Committee. The format may prove cumbersome for some Theme Committees if too many contentious issues were listed in this manner and some flexibility would have to apply.
- Theme Committees must have more regard to the Constitutional Principles in their work. In some instances Constitutional Principles themselves had been listed as contentious issues in reports. Reference was made to a document issued on 23 January 1995 which indicated for each block of the work programme which Constitutional Principles should be borne in mind.
- Technical Experts should assist Theme Committees in tightening up their reports to provide better definition of the issues in contention. It needed to be borne in mind that the object of the exercise was to produce a new constitution and Theme Committee reports should be more directed towards the provisions of the new constitution.
- v) The Panel would advise the Chairpersons on an ongoing basis by examining Theme Committee reports and it was hoped this would assist the discussion in the Constitutional Committee.

4.2 DISCUSSION OF REPORT

- 4.2.1 It was agreed that the CA Law Advisors would put the Theme Committee 1 report into the same format as Theme Committee 6.4 to facilitate discussion in the Constitutional Committee. This would be distributed to Constitutional Committee members on Thursday 9 March 1995.
- 4.2.2 Mr Marais pointed out two corrections to the report from Theme Committee 1:
 - i) A spelling mistake on page 53, 5th para in which the words " ... the

- ACDP argued to verifying degrees ... "should be replaced by ".. the ACDP argued to varying degrees ... "; and
- ii) An error on page 55, para H in which the first sentence should be amended to read "There is no disagreement between the parties on this fact, with the exception of the ACDP and the IFP, that the constitution should provide for a separation of religion (often expressed as "Church") and State."
- 4.2.3 It was agreed the Constitutional Committee would discuss the report on Monday 13 March with the assistance of the table to be prepared by the law advisors.

5. DRAFTING PROCEDURES

- 5.1 The Chairperson explained that the Management Committee had finalised this matter. However the Constitutional Committee had not been informed of this and therefore parties had been given another opportunity to make their views known.
- 5.2 It was noted that even though some of the areas of agreement in the Constitutional Committee were very broad, general issues, the experts should on their own be able to sift out those issues which lent themselves to draft text.
- 5.3 It was also noted that the drafting needed to begin as a matter of urgency.
- 5.4 It was suggested there may be a need for a small committee to be set up to look at issues of style and language to ensure that the draft text had the required cadence and "ring" required of the new constitution.
- 5.5 The drafting procedure outlined in the documentation was agreed to subject to the understanding that even contentious issues could be put into draft text so that the Constitutional Committee was able to consider the various options.
- 5.6 Mr Ebrahim reported in passing that members of the CA law advisors were attending a plain language seminar organised by the Justice Department, in response to the concern raised in point 5.4 above.

6. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING TIMES

It was agreed the Management Committee would meet from 11h00 - 13h00 on Monday as and when required. It was noted however there would be no meeting of the Management Committee on Monday 13 March 1995 and neither on Monday 20 March 1995 because of the Queen's visit.

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

7.1 TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS FOR CA MEMBERS FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION EVENTS

It was agreed the Administration would continue to make use of the planes provided by the SANDF instead of using commercial flights, as this arrangement was cost-effective and lent itself to better logistical organisation.

8. CLOSURE

There being no other business the meeting rose at 09h30.

COMMISSION ON PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT

Established in terms of section 163 of Act 200, 1993

260 Walker Street Sunnyside Private Bag X887 Pretoria 0001 Telephone (012) 44-2297 Fax (012) 341-8452

TELEFAX COVERING SHEET/DEKBLAD

TO/AAN: Mr H Ebrahim

Executive Director: CA

FAXNUMBER/FAKSNOMMER:

FROM/VAN: J P Vermaak

CPG

SUBJECT/ONDERWERP: Interaction between CPG and CA

NUMBER OF PAGES/AANTAL BLADSYE: 1 + 3

If you have not received all the pages please phone: Indien u nie al die bladsye ontvang het nie skakel asseblief: (012) 442297

Following our discussions with the CA Management in Cape Town, the CPG approved the attached document setting out the working relationship with CA structures and our programme for workshops and think tanks. We will particularly appreciate it if the dates for workshops could be noted as invitations to attend will be extended to a number of TC and CC members.

Regards

VERMAAK

6/3/1995

PROPOSED WORKING RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE CONSTITUTIONAL ASSEMBLY AND THE COMMISSION ON PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT

- 1. In order to maintain the relevance of the Commission in the constitution-making process, its programme will have to be restructured to allow for closer synchronisation with the CA's programme. There is also a need for closer involvement in the work of Theme Committees and the Constitutional Committee of the CA.
- 2. For this purpose, it may be necessary to reschedule the CPG's work so that it is wherever possible a week in advance of that of the programme for the Constitutional Committee and the Theme Committees. However, these programmes have not yet been finalised. In order to adhere to this arrangement, the CPG would need to be advised in regard to the agenda and documentation of the relevant Theme Committees and the Constitutional Committee at least 10 days before such meeting.
- 3. The Commission's technical staff will prepare working documents on a regular basis for discussion and decision-making by the CPG Constitutional Committee. The CPG will not in any way be bound by the contents of any such working documents and may make any amendments, additions or exclusions decided upon during the discussion. The CPG's views will then be conveyed to the Theme Committees or the Constitutional Committee.
- 4. The Chairperson himself or someone designated by the Commission will attend meetings of the Theme Committees and the Constitutional Committee, and make inputs in accordance with the CPG's decision on relevant aspects of constitutional matters. He will also identify and refer specific aspects to the CPG for further consideration and recommendation.
- 5. A core group of the CPG Constitutional Committee will be formed who, with the assistance of some members of the Task Group (Think Tank) will deal with urgent matters arising from the CA's activities during the preceding week possibly on the Sunday afternoon, before the CA meetings on the Monday.

- 6. Pretoria should continue to be the CPG's base, but that activities in regard to constitution-making such as under 5 should move to Cape Town, and that for this purpose office accommodation should be obtained and block bookings made at the Town House Hotel.
- 7. Arrangements should be made for a technical adviser of the CPG who will be able to convey the CPG's views on constitutional issues during the writing of constitutional text, to be part of the relevant technical task team of the Constitutional Assembly, with a view to draft constitution-making.
- 8. The CPG's normal programme as set out in the attached document will have to be continued as time and personnel constraints, the availability of members of the CPG and Think Tanks and other logistical reasons make it almost impossible to further condense the programme without completely disrupting the work of the CPG.
- 9. The CPG will continue with its contact with the provinces in an attempt to obtain their responses to questions on key constitutional issues and comments on its recommendations as required by section 161(1) of the Constitution. However, the CA and the CPG will jointly explore ways to approach the provinces in a manner that will avoid confusion and duplication.

md455

COMMISSION ON PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT

PROGRAMME FOR WORKSHOPS, THINK TANKS AND CONSTITUTIONAL COMMITTEE MEETINGS JANUARY TO JUNE 1995

DATE	NATURE	SUBJECT
18 January	THINK TANK	General principles ex workshop
26 January	COMMITTEE	Consideration of general principles
16 February	THINK TANK	Provincial legislative competence Provincial constitutions
2 March	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	Finalisation of 1 and 2
9 March	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	Provincial legislature (composition, representation, elections, proceedings, etc) The Senate
23 March	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	 5. Provincial Executive (composition, position of Premiers and MECs, procedures, etc) 6. Provincial staff matters
30 March	COMMITTEE	Finalisation of 3 - 6
7 - 8 April	WORKSHOP	Financial and Fiscal matters (Provincial and local government)
13 April	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	7. Financial and fiscal matters ex workshop
20 April	COMMITTEE	Finalisation of 7
21 April (Provisional)	WORKSHOP	Traditional authorities
4 May	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	8. Traditional authorities
11 - 12 May (Provisional)	WORKSHOP	Local government issues
18 May morning)	COMMITTEE	Finalisation of 8
18 - 19 May	WORKSHOP	Institutionalisation of intergovernmental relations



DATE	NATURE	SUBJECT
25 May	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	9. Local government issues ex workshop
1 June	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	10. Institutionalisation of intergovernmental relations ex workshop
8 June	COMMITTEE	Finalisation of 9 and 10
15 June	COMMITTEE/ THINK TANK	11. Self determination12. Number and boundaries of provinces13. Sub-regions (powers and functions)

md319(A)

MEMORANDUM

To: Management Committee

From : Executive Director

Date: 16 March 1995

Re: OBJECTIVES OF PROPOSED NNTV PROGRAMMES

At the last Management Committee, the DP requested further information on the broad objectives of the Penguin Films/NNTV project.

Over the last few months we have exchanged views with NNTV and Penguin films with a view to obtaining several slots on prime time TV. The broad objectives of the proposal which we now have from Penguin films are as follows:

1. PROMOTION OF THE OBJECTIVES OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL ASSEMBLY

Television and radio are one of the most powerful mediums to communicate ideas with the public. It is also a very powerful mean of engaging the public in the Public Participation Programme.

2. PUBLIC EDUCATION

There is a need to ensure that we educate the public about the process and the activities of the Constitutional Assembly.

5445 STMET W ISSUES — PARTIES TO MAKE SUBS

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The original plan is to hold sixteen slots, 45 minutes each. Each of the slots, which would be viewed on prime time, would involve a moderator with representatives of a Theme Committee and members of the public from different parts of the country. Hence, I envisage that the programme be broadcast and recorded in different parts of the country involving the people of the various provinces.

We would strongly recommend that the Management Committee endorses the programme objectives subject to the views of the different political parties as to how best these programmes would serve the interest of the Constitutional Assembly.

REPORT ON CONSTITUTIONAL PUBLIC MEETINGS

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 The pilot phase of the Constitutional Public Meeting (CPM) programme commenced on 25 February 1995, with five CPM's. CPM's were not scheduled for the week ending on 4 March 1995 but three were held at Ivory Park (Gauteng), Kuboes (Northern Cape) and Saldanha (Western Cape) on 11 March 1995 and one at Phalaborwa (Northern Transvaal) on 12 March 1995.
- 1.2 The main purpose of the CPM's is to give effect to the objectives of the Public Participation Programme¹ through involving and engaging the public at large. In this regard rural and disadvantaged communities are specifically targeted. The CPM's held on 11 and 12 March 1995 were a marked improvement from the first ones and went a long way towards achieving their objectives.
- 1.3 The principle of regular evaluation of the Public Participation Programme has also been adopted². The end of the pilot phase of the CPM's is therefore an appropriate stage for evaluating the CPM programme.

2. AREAS FOR EVALUATION

2.1 The Objectives

2.1.1 Informing

In the eight CPM's held in the pilot phase have enabled the Constitutional Assembly to inform approximately 3900 people³ in rural and disadvantaged communities, about the constitution-making process.

2.1.2 Educating

Education of the public is an objective that will specifically be achieved by the Constitutional Education Programme, However the CPM's are, to some extent, achieving it in the course of

CA Resolution - 31 October 1994 Part 4 paragraph 11. Draft Public Participation Programme, Community Liaison

² CA Resolution 30 October 1994 Part 4, para 15.4

³ About 205 in Bloemfontein, 210 in Graaff Reinett, 70 in Nelspruit, 130 in Klerksdorp, 900 in Ivory Park, 700 in Kuboes, 130 in Saldanha and 1600 in Phalaborwa.

informing the public about the constitution-making process. The presentations of some Theme Committee members are so clear and plain that they succeed in educating the public on the significance of the constitution and the relevant Theme Committee items.

2.1.3 Receiving Submissions

- 2.1.3.1 Receipt of public views is an important objective of the CPM's and has been met with a measure of success. The public makes meaningful substantive submissions on the relevant agenda items and other constitutional issues not related to the current Theme Committee block.
- 2.1.3.2 Insufficient time for submissions, is one of the serious constraint to significantly representative views being received. It is therefore necessary to structure the CPM's in such a manner that opportunity is given to organisations, structures and formations to present their views, in addition to the broader public airing their individual views.
- 2.1.3.3 It is suggested that views reflecting broad public opinion can be obtained if a list of all the organisations, structures, and formations represented at the meeting is provided to the CPM chairperson. The chairperson will then refer to the list and call on each one of the organisations, structures and formations to present their views on the relevant issues.

2.2 The audience

- 2.2.1 Publicity for each of the CPM's was spread widely and not only targeted at the area where the CPM was to be held. Transport arrangements were also made to further facilitate attendance of people from far.
- 2.2.2 Letters of invitation were sent to numerous organisations and political parties.
- 2.2.3 The four CPM's of 11 and 12 March 1995 reflect a 500% increase in attendance compared to those of 25 February 1995.
- 2.2.4 It is apparent, however, that more attention needs to be given to ensuring the attendance of a cross-section of people and

improving the representation of organisations, structures and formations at the CPM's. To this end CA staff will have to supplement the services of SACS in the provinces and perform a more active role in the consultations and preparations for the CPM's.

2.2.5 Lead time of about three weeks is necessary for better organised CPM's, therefore the number and frequency of the CPM's may have to be reduced. In this regard it is suggested that about two CPM's be held in each province during the predraft phase.

2.3 The Programme

- 2.3.1 The programme is designed so as to enable members of Theme Committees to inform the public on issues considered by the various Theme Committees and to invite the public to make submissions on those issues.
- 2.3.2 In briefing documents provided prior to the CPM's the nonparty political character of CPM's is highlighted and participants are required to maintain the non-partisan stance in their presentations and contributions at the CPM's.

2.4 Facilitators

2.4.1 The facilitators used are mediators provided by the Independent Mediation Services of South Africa(IMSSA). The facilitators perform and chairing and facilitating role and are properly briefed about the character of the meetings in general and about their role.

2.5 Logistical Arrangements

The services of the SACS provincial offices are utilised for the logistical arrangements.

2.5.1 Translation

In some instances the translators who were supposed to translate at the meeting did not arrive and Theme Committee members ended up performing the function of translators.

2.5.2 Travel

The Air Force is used for all air travel resulting in significant

("TINGE

savings on the costs of travelling. A preliminary costing of the CPM's is annexed. A composite account will be presented as soon as full details are received from the SACS provincial offices and invoices processed.

CONCLUSION

CPM's are an important interface mechanism between elected members of the Constitutional Assembly and the public. The value that the public attaches to their elected representative coming to them to seek their views on matters of the constitution cannot be overstated. It is therefore necessary to reappraise the approach to organising CPM's with the view of improving the process of receiving substantive submissions at the CPM's.

AGRESSO - FENCR /BETTER PLANNING/NOT COMPARATED IN RURAL AREAS.

COST PER PERSON!

DR RABINOWITZ WILL MAKE SIMT BUT NOT BINCH.
IN DISCUSSION

Ref PROP 1 - MC AGREEMT TT PORTUS PLUBLICITY
SHLD NOT 141LITE CYRILLEUN

SIMT NOTED (AFTER 50 mins)

CONSTITUTIONAL ASSEMBLY

THEME COMMITTEE 4
FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS

- SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT ON BLOCK 1

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT OF THEME COMMITTEE 4

ON BLOCK 1 OF WORK PROGRAMME

Having submitted its first report to the Constitutional Committee, Theme Committee 4 has the pleasure of submitting a supplementary report that deals with the outstanding issues as identified in the first report.

The first report (included in the documentation) of the Theme Committee dealt with Constitutional Principle II - " Everyone shall enjoy all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties, which shall be provided for and protected by entrenched and justiciable provisions in the Constitution, which shall be drafted after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3 of this Constitution".

- 1. The report identified the following as an outstanding issue:
 - 1.1 The meaning of "after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3"
- 2. The report identified the following as outstanding contentious issues:
 - 2.1 Whether the term "everyone" in "Everyone shall enjoy", includes juristic persons, structured and unstructured groups, and organs of civil society, etc.
 - 2.2 The meaning "universally accepted fundamental rights".
- 3. The Committee agreed that the outstanding issues as reflected above would be dealt with in the following way:
 - 3.1 The Technical Committee would produce opinions for the Theme Committee on the issues in 2.1 and 2.2 above.
 - 3.2 Issue 2.2 would be dealt with in 2 stages as follows:
 - i) The political parties would make submissions to the Theme Committee by the 17 February 1995.
 - ii) The Technical Committee would submit an opinion to the Theme Committee by the 22 February 1995.

- 4. The Technical Committee would also prepare an opinion on the meaning of "after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3" which was considered an issue that needed further elaboration.
- 5. It was agreed that once the outstanding issues had been dealt with (as above) the Theme Committee would submit a supplementary report to the Constitutional Committee, namely this report.
- 6. The above process was followed and the Theme Committee dealt with these issues in two meetings. In this regard, the Technical Committee's reports and party submissions are included in this document.
- 7. SUMMARY OF PARTY SUBMISSIONS AND TECHNICAL COMMITTEE'S REPORTS ON THE OUTSTANDING ISSUES
- 7.1 <u>Everyone</u> shall enjoy ... "(Whether the term "everyone" includes juristic persons, structured and unstructured groups, and organs of civil society, etc)
- 7.1.1 According to the opinion of the Technical Committee, in the context of Constitutional Principle II, whether the term "everyone" includes juristic persons, structured and unstructured groups, and organs of civil society, the reference is to natural persons.
 This does not exclude however, that in some of the rights, consideration may be given to juristic persons.
- 7.1.2 Having noted the opinion of the Technical Committee, the parties agreed to give due consideration to the Technical opinion when considering each specific right.
- 7.2 "after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3"
- 7.2.1 All the parties and the Technical Committee opinion agreed that the rights contained in Chapter 3 should be given due and proper consideration.
- 7.2.2 The parties also agreed that they are not limited to the rights in Chapter 3.

- 7.2.3 It was agreed that in considering rights to be extended, changed or deleted, any alteration of the rights be subject to the requirements of Constitutional Principle II that everyone shall enjoy universally accepted fundamental rights.
- 7.3 "all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties" (which rights etc., qualify as universally accepted fundamental rights)
- 7.3.1 There was agreement that primary emphasis be given to the body of International Human Rights Law, including the Universal Declaration of Human Rights (1948), the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (1966) and the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (1966).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Technical Committee

- 1.1 Opinion on the meaning of "Everyone" in Constitutional Princple II, Schedule 4 to the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 200 of 1993.
- 1.2 Opinion the meaning of the phrase, "... after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3 of the Constitution" in Constitutional Principle II of this interim Constitution Act 200 of 1993.
- 1.3 Opinion on the meaning of "universally accepted fundamental rights" in Constitutional Principle II, Schedule 4 to the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 200 of 1993.

2. Political Parties

- 2.1 ACDP:
 - 2.1.1 Which rights qualify as universally acceptable fundamental rights.
 - 2.1.2 The use of the term "Everyone" in Constitutional Principle II Position of the unborn
 - Position of the juristic persons
- 2.2 ANC
 - 2.2.1 What constitutes universally accepted fundamental rights: Preliminary Submission
- 2.3 **DP** 2.3.1 Block 2
- 2.4 FF
 2.4.1 Submission on universally accepted fundamental rights
- 2.5 IFP2.5.1 Supplementary Submission to Theme Committee 4 for Block No 1
- 2.6 NP2.6.1 Notes on Aspects pertaining to Bill of Rights
- 2.7 PAC
 - 2.7.1 Preliminary submission on what are "universally accepted fundamental rights".
- 3. First Report of Theme Committe 4 on Block 1 of Work Programme

- TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

OPINION ON THE MEANING OF "EVERYONE" IN CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE II, SCHEDULE 4 TO THE CONSTITUTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA, ACT 200 OF 1993

JOINT OPINION OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE TO THEME
COMMITTEE FOUR

1. Our brief was formulated as follows in para. 7.1.1 of the Report on Block 1:

The Technical Committee would produce an opinion for the Theme Committee on the following issues:

i) "Everyone shall enjoy...." (Whether the term 'everyone' includes juristic persons, structured and unstructured groups, and organs of civil society, etc.)

ii)....

The issue of juristic persons

2. The significance of a positive opinion that the word, "everyone" in Constitutional Principle II includes juristic persons within its scope is that the debate on whether they should be bearers of rights at all in the final Constitution is closed. On this interpretation, Constitutional Principle II requires that juristic persons be entitled to claim "all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties." (" Everyone shall enjoy..."). On the other hand, if the term "everyone" does not include juristic persons within its scope it is still open to the drafters of the final Constitution to decide whether juristic

persons should be entitled to claim some of entrenched fundamental rights, and to what extent.

- 2. It is our unanimous opinion that in the context of Constitutional Principle II "everyone" refers to natural persons. We come to this conclusion for the various reasons set out below. Each of these reasons is not necessarily wholly endorsed by all of us. However, these differences in approach do not affect our joint conclusion.
- 2.1. The word, "everyone" does not by itself resolve the question whether it includes juristic persons within its scope. The word assumes a different significance depending on the context of the instrument in which it is found, and the relevant jurisprudence of the particular system which protects "fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties."

Other Jurisdictions

In the context of the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms the holders of the particular rights are either "everyone" (freedom of expression, religion, assembly, association as well as legal rights relating to security of person and a fair trial), "every citizen" (democratic and mobility rights) and "every individual" (equality rights). The jurisprudence on the Canadian Charter indicates that the courts have interpreted the phrase "everyone" to include companies in relation, for example, to certain legal rights.

International Human Rights Law

The International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (1966) refers, inter alia, to "every human being", "no-one", "everyone" and "all persons" as the subjects of the different rights protected in Part III of the Covenant. It is clear that no particular significance can be placed on the differences of formulation in this context.

In the context of the European Convention on Human Rights (1950), the majority of the articles refer to "everyone" as the holders of the particular rights protected in this Convention. However, the right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions is by contrast expressly conferred on "every natural or legal person". This distinction between "everyone" and "every natural and legal person" strongly suggests that the extension of the rights in the Convention to juristic persons was only specifically contemplated in relation to the protection of property rights.

The American Convention on Human Rights (1969) refers inter alia to "every person", "all persons" "everyone" and "no one" in relation to the various rights protected. It is clear from the context that no significance can be attached to these different formulations in this Convention.

The African Charter on Human and Peoples' Rights (1981) refers mainly to "every individual" or to "all peoples" as the bearers of the particular rights. Article 14 simply states that the "right to property shall be guaranteed" [by the States parties] without referring to the bearer of this particular right.

2.2. In no system protecting human rights are juristic persons allowed to be the bearers of " all universally accepted rights, freedoms and

civil liberties".[our emphasis]. It is relatively uncontroversial that there are some rights that juristic persons by their very nature are either incapable of claiming or should not be allowed to claim because of the social implications of allowing such claims. Examples include the rights to human dignity, to life, physical integrity, forced labour, children's rights, political rights (the right to vote etc.). One would thus have expected that the drafters of our interim Constitution would have expressly inserted such a qualification if they intended "everyone" to include juristic persons in the context of Constitutional Principle II.

- 2.3. The South African interim Constitution and the German Constitution contain explicit clauses dealing with the position of juristic persons in relation to the entrenched rights [see s. 7(3), SA Constitution; article 19, German Constitution]. From this one may deduce that if "everyone" is used without adding anything concerning juristic persons, it refers only to natural persons. This argument is reinforced by the consideration that the same constitution makers formulated and approved both section s. 7(3) and Constitutional Principle II of Schedule 4.
- 2.4. "Everyone" in the context of Constitutional Principle II refers to the bearers of "universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties". The body of international law protecting human rights is based on the concept of the dignity of the human person. This concept of the inherent dignity and worth of the human person is found in the preamble of the Charter of the United Nations, the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights and in a variety of regional and specialised conventions, resolutions and declarations protecting human rights.

Juristic persons are essentially artificial entities which are given legal recognition, and which have a separate legal identity from that of their individual members. Companies, for example, as juristic persons in our legal system have the capacity to be the independent holders of certain rights and duties. This facilitates the purposes for which the companies are usually established, viz. the mobilisation of shareholders' capital for commercial gain.

The purpose of protecting fundamental rights is primarily to protect different aspects of human dignity. From this perspective "everyone" in Constitutional Principle II refers to natural persons. This approach does not exclude the possibility that in certain instances enjoyment of the entrenched fundamental rights can be extended to juristic persons.

3. As stated above, our opinion in this regard is only dealing with the meaning of "everyone" in the context of Constitutional Principle II. The effect of our conclusion is that it is still open for the Constitutional Assembly to decide that juristic persons should be allowed to be bearers of some of the entrenched rights in the final Constitution. While there is consensus that juristic persons cannot be the bearers of certain rights, there are other rights in respect of which this question will be contentious. It should also always be borne in mind that the fact that juristic persons might not themselves be the bearers of certain rights does not mean that they cannot be granted locus standi to challenge the constitutionality of laws which conflict with those rights. In many instances the interests of juristic persons can also be protected through an action brought by its members.

- 4. If it is decided that consideration should be given to allowing juristic persons to claim entitlement to some of the rights in the final Bill of Rights, two possible ways of approaching the question are the following:
 - 4.1. The first approach is to be specific in respect of each right by the use of terms such as 'citizen' or 'individual' or distinguishing between natural and juristic persons. This approach would, in the text, determine whether a juristic person is the bearer of the right in question or not. A difficulty of this approach is that the nature of the different juristic persons in our legal system will also have to be taken into account in defining to what extent they can be holders of the particular rights. As a result the text of the Constitution would have to be fairly detailed;
 - 4.2. The second approach is to use a phrase such as "every person" in relation to the entrenched rights and leave it to the Courts to determine when the right should be extended to juristic persons, and to what extent. This is the effect of s.7(3) of the interim Constitution. The disadvantage of this approach is that there is uncertainty in relation to the different rights, and this issue will have to be determined by litigation. The decisions of the Courts in this regard may have ramifications and effects which the drafters of the Constitution did not intend.

7

5. We would suggest that Theme Committee IV approach this issue by

considering in relation to each right, the following questions:

5.1. whether juristic persons should be allowed to be the holders

of the right in question; or

5.2. this should be left to the courts to develop.

At the end of the exercise it may well be decided by the Constitutional

Assembly to opt for either approach outlined in paras. 4.1. and 4.2.

in drafting the final Constitution [i.e. clearly defining the holders of

each right in relation to juristic persons or leaving this question to the

courts]. This is assuming of course that it is decided that juristic

persons should be allowed to be holders of rights at all under the final

Constitution.

Structured and unstructured groups and organs of civil society

6. Principle XII deals with the rights of structured groups and organs

of civil society. Unstructured groups are not included in the word

"everyone" in Constitutional Principle II, or by Constitutional Principle

XII. This again leaves the question open in respect of the drafting of

the final constitution.

Ms. S. Liebenberg

Prof. H. Cheadle

Prof. I. Rautenbach

Prof. J. Dugard

17 February 1995

OPINION OF TECHNICAL COMMITTEE (THEME COMMITTEE 4)

The meaning of the phrase, "after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3 of the Constitution" in Constitutional Principle II of this interim Constitution Act 200 of 1993

- 1. Constitutional Principle II provides that in drafting the Bill of Rights in the final Constitution "due consideration is to be given" inter alia to the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3 of this Constitution."
- 2. We are asked to advise on the meaning to be attached to the phrase, "due consideration."
- 3. The Shorter Oxford English Dictionary gives as one of its meanings for the word, "due": "...such as ought to be; fitting, proper, rightful". The Chambers Twentieth Century Dictionary (1972) also includes as one of its meanings the connotation of fairness.
- 4. In the context of Principle II, this phrase means that in drafting the final Constitution Theme Committee 4 and the Constitutional Assembly are required to consider each 'fundamental right' contained in Chapter III of the interim Constitution with a view to including it in the final Constitution. This consideration must be conducted in good faith and must take account of both the reasons for retaining each right and the reasons for excluding or amending it. The 'consideration' must be proper, serious and fair.

2

5. There is no obligation upon Theme Committee 4 (or the Constitutional

Assembly) to retain all the rights contained in Chapter 3 of the interim

Constitution. Each right must, however, be properly considered.

6. The fact that the right in question is already included in Chapter 3

is not the only factor that is required to be considered by

Constitutional Principle II. This is also indicated by the use of the

phrase, "inter alia". Consideration must also be given to whether the

right is a "universally accepted" fundamental right, freedom or civil

liberty. It is also required that consideration be given to whether there

are other rights not presently included in Chapter 3 that may properly

be regarded as "universally accepted" fundamental rights, freedoms or

civil liberties.

7. In drafting the Bill of Rights the Constitutional Assembly should

therefore give consideration to these factors. The above approach

should also inform the Constitutional Assembly and its Theme Committees

in planning and structuring its work programme.

Prof. J. Dugard

Prof. I. Rautenbach

Prof. H. Cheadle

Ms. S. Liebenberg

17 February 1995

OPINION OF TECHNICAL COMMITTEE (THEME COMMITTEE 4)

The meaning of 'universally accepted fundamental rights' in Constitutional Principle II. Schedule 4 to the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act 200 of 1993

1. Constitutional Principle II of Schedule 4 of Act 200 of 1993 proclaims:

'Everyone shall enjoy all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties, which shall be provided for and protected by entrenched and justiciable provisions in the Constitution...'

2. The term 'universal acceptance' has been considered by South African courts in the context of acceptance of rules of customary international law. These decisions make it clear that 'universal' acceptance or recognition does not require that all States should consent to a particular rule. It is sufficient that there be widespread or general acceptance of the rule on the part of States.

Inter-Science Research and Developments Services (Pty)
Ltd v Republica Popular de Mozambique 1980 (2) SA 111
(T) at 125 A - B;
S v Petane 1988 (3) SA 51 (C) at 56 - 57.

The same principle applies to the 'universal acceptance' of human rights. Rights are 'universally' accepted when there is widespread and general acceptance or recognition of the rights on the part of States. It is not necessary that all States accept the existence of such rights as this would give States that object to such rights the power of veto in respect of such rights. During the apartheid years, for example, South Africa did not accept many of the rights contained in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights of

1948, but this did not mean that the rights were not viewed as 'universally accepted.'

- 4. Today 'universally accepted' human rights are to be found in international human rights treaties and the declarations of the organs of the United Nations. Their 'universal acceptance' is evidenced by the number of States that have ratified them (in the case of multilateral treaties) and by the number of States that have voted for them (in the case of declarations).
- 5. Some human rights are so widely accepted by states that they form part of customary international law and are therefore binding on all States. The prohibitions on slavery, torture, prolonged arbitrary detention and systematic racial discrimination fall into this category.
- 6. Most universally accepted fundamental rights are contained in multilateral treaties and declarations of which the following are the most important:
- (a) United Nations Charter, articles 55 and 56 (184 parties).
 - (b) Universal Declaration of Human Rights, a resolution of the General Assembly of the United Nations, which was approved by 48 of the 56 member States of the United Nations in 1948 (South Africa, together with seven other States abstained from voting).
- (c) International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, 1966 (over 120 parties including 36 African States).
- (d) International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, 1966 (over 120 parties).

These treaties are given additional protection by regional human rights treaties and treaties which elaborate on the rights contained in the above named treaties (known as specialized human rights treaties). The purpose of those specialized conventions is to place detailed obligations on

States parties to protect the rights concerned and to provide for special measures of supervision of their obligations under the treaty.

Regional human rights treaties

European Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms, 1950
American Convention on Human Rights, 1969
African Charter on Human and Peoples' Rights ('Banjul Charter), 1981

Special human rights treaties

- (a) International Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Racial Discrimination, 1965 (over 137 parties)
- (b) Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women, 1979 (over 130 parties)
- (c) Convention against Torture and other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment, 1984 (over 80 parties)
- (d) Convention on the Rights of the Child, 1989 (over 154 parties)

These are the principal specialized human rights treaties. In addition there are treaties that deal with such matters as the protection of refugees, migrant workers and the prohibition of slavery.

7. Declarations adopted by international Conferences also play an important role in clarifying how the international community views human rights obligations.

The Vienna Declaration on Human Rights and Programme of Action of 25 June 1993, which was adopted by consensus by the representatives of 171 States participating in the World Conference on Human Rights is probably the most important Declaration of this kind.

8.

National Bills of Rights are not 'universally accepted fundamental rights' in the sense that they lack general acceptance. Furthermore they are usually the product of particular historical and political circumstances operating at the time of their adoption in the different countries inevitably influenced the inclusion or and this has exclusion of particular rights. On the other hand they cannot be ignored as they have either influenced the drafting of international conventions (as in the case of the United States Bill of Rights) or they have in turn been influenced by such conventions (as with the Canada Charter of Rights and the Namibia Constitution). This means that Theme Committee 4 may legitimately refer to national Bills of Rights for assistance in the formulation of the rights contained in 'universally accepted' instruments. necessary implication of this is that a right included in a national Bill of Rights that does not appear in any universally accepted instrument should not be considered by the Theme Committee. The Second Amendment to the US Constitution which recognizes 'the rights of the people to keep and bear arms' is a case in point. It does not appear in any of the conventions listed in paragraph 6 and cannot therefore be considered as a 'universally accepted fundamental right'.

This interpretation accords with Section 35 of the Interim Constitution which accords to international human rights norms a higher status than national comparative standards.

9. The international conventions listed in paragraph 6 establish courts, investigative commissions and committees to interpret and enforce the rights contained in these conventions. In formulating a Bill of Rights for the South African Constitution, Theme Committee 4 should have regard to the interpretations placed on these rights by these Courts, commissions and committees.

- 10. The international conventions listed in paragraph 6 provide for the enforcement and protection of 'universally accepted fundamental rights' in different ways. International Courts, commissions and investigative committees are established to provide international machinery for the enforcement of these rights, but at the same time signatory states are required to provide effective domestic remedies for the rights in question. Only where the domestic remedy is inadequate does the aggrieved individual have the right to invoke the available international machinery.
- 11. The methods employed by international conventions to secure the protection of human rights are relevant to the work of Theme Committee 4 for two reasons. First, they provide guidance as to how 'universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties' might be entrenched and protected by the Constitution as required by Constitutional Principle II. They show that judicial methods of protection, although very important, are not the only mechanism employed for the protection of rights. Secondly, they indicate the degree of protection that South Africa will be obliged to accord to human rights when it ratifies a number of international human rights conventions which it signed in 1993 and 1994. Obviously the Constitution must ensure that the protection it accords to human rights does not fall below the level of protection that South Africa will be bound to provide in terms of its international obligations.

In 1993 South Africa signed the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination against Women, the Convention against Torture and the Convention on the Rights of the Child. In October 1994 President Mandela signed the Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and the Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights. All these conventions are still to be ratified by Parliament in terms of section 231 (2) of Act 200 of 1993.

12. Distinctions are sometimes drawn between 'First Generation rights' (civil and political rights), 'second generation rights' (economic, social and cultural) and 'third generation rights' (collective rights). This distinction is often difficult to maintain and does not accord with the following key paragraph contained in the 1993 Vienna Declaration on Human Rights and Programme of Action:

'All human rights are universal, indivisible and interdependent and interrelated. The international community must treat human rights globally in a fair and equal manner, on the same footing, and with the same emphasis. While the significance of national and regional particularities and various historical, cultural and religious backgrounds must be borne in mind, it is the duty of States, regardless of their political, economic and cultural systems, to promote and protect all human rights and fundamental freedoms.'

In the case of all universally accepted fundamental rights the emphasis should be on providing the most effective national remedy for the violation of the rights concerned. This would accord with the approach adopted by international human rights law.

- ACDP

AFRICAN CHRISTIAN DEMOCRATIC PARTY

SUBMISSION TO THEME COMMITTEE FOUR/ BLOCK ONE

WHICH RIGHTS QUALIFY AS UNIVERSALLY ACCEPTABLE FUNDAMENTAL HUMAN RIGHTS?

The western heritage of the rights culture may be traced back to it's birth and development by Christian law scholars of the canon law era (11th through 13th Centuries AD), by medieval Christian theologians and by civil law teachers working in a Christian intellectual framework.

The rights mentioned in the Bible, which these scholars founded their teachings upon, are "unalienable rights" - rights of the person, which are God-given and which a person is not permitted to transfer or abdicate from.

This concept of rights, as a God-given, "immutable" (incapable of restriction and reduction by government or other persons) and "universal" (belonging to every person, regardless of circumstance or situation), has no parallel in either Greek or Roman philosophical thinking - it is of Christian origin and was rejected by Renaissance humanist and Enlightenment rationalists of the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries.

What is said in this paper must be read in conjunction with the heading and the ending of the paper on the use of the term "everyone" in Constitutional Principle II

Many Christians probably are of the opinion that human rights and the concept of universally accepted rights are anathema in Biblical context. The Bible, however, clearly pronounces itself on the subject of rights and, in fact, proposes a complete hierarchy of rights to envelope and govern society as a whole.

In the Hebrew Old Testament the word *mishpat* is normally translated with justice and likewise in the New Testament, where *exousia* is translated with authority. What follows are headings, rather than lists of the species of those rights the PARTY views as universal and fundamental.

Surely the most basic human right must be the right to life. So basic, in fact, that relatively little constitutional writing was done on this subject in jurisdictions across the globe. The viewpoint of the PARTY in this respect is clear - the human being has the right of life from the moment of conception to the point of natural death. This right is subject always to the death penalty after due process of law.

The right to freedom and security of the person may almost be said to be of the same rank as the right to life, because the former is virtually useless without the latter.

From a Biblical perspective, it is believed that, if Jesus Christ makes one free, he is free indeed and as such, Christians hold the right to freedom and security of the person in high esteem. It is indeed an aspect of respect for the person, the individuality and uniqueness of the bearer of this right that numbers it as being among one of the most basic and widely accepted rights. This right should not be limited by the wording of the new constitution; the PARTY suggests that any attempt to list aspects of this right must not have a limiting effect.

The right of Freedom of association and expression are so inherently a part of the right to security that it needs to be seen as an expression of the former, rather than simply separate rights. In this respect, it is good to keep in mind that the wording of the American Declaration of Independence mentions, among the rights with which the Creator endowed human beings are: life, liberty and the pursuit of happiness. Even if done unintentionally, the grouping has the effect to show that rights are always exercised conjunctively with and in relation to, other rights.

The right to property and the contractual freedom that goes with it are important, especially in a country where discriminatory laws made it impossible for constituent portions of society to own property.

This right shall also include the use of enjoyment thereof, without any person being subject to forfeiture of his property, except in satisfaction of a lawful civil judgement obtained by due process of law.

The right to be secure in one's person and property against unlawful search or seizure, shall not be infringed.

The right of expression, including artistic freedom, speech and the press, shall not be infringed. Obscene defamatory and profane expressions are licentious and an abuse of this right. That which is obscene, including pornographic expressions offensive to chastity or purity, is licentious and punishable by civil government.

That which defames, including slanderous and libellous expressions, must be subject to civil redress.

The right of movement and association, including petitioning the government to redress grievances, shall not be abridged and should not be subject to licensing, permits or registration.

The right to freedom of religion shall not be infringed and no person shall be compelled, nor suffer before the law on account of his religious opinions. All people shall be free to profess and evangelise and by argument, to obtain their opinions in matters of religion and this shall not affect their civil capabilities. This right shall not permit the commission of anti-social, deviant, immoral or criminal acts.

All persons have an immutable and inalienable right to emigrate freely from the country of their origin to settle in another. This right also exists in the country of origin between constituent parts thereof.

A husband and wife are endowed with the exclusive non-delegable right to conceive and bear children without any infringements. This shall not, however, permit or compel abortion or infanticide.

Parents are endowed with the original right to educate their offspring and minor legal dependants. Parents are free to use one or more agents of their choice to assist in exercising this right. Licensing, permits or registration should not impair this right.

Both husband and wife and their children of majority, are endowed with the original right to care for their spouse or parents respectively and use one or more agents of their choice to do so, except civil government Euthanasia shall never be permitted or compelled.

The right to transfer property by gift shall not be impaired, nor be subject to taxation.

The right to exercise jurisdiction over one's property shall not be infringed, except by prior consent of the owner(s). This shall not, however, limit judicial resolution of disputes between individuals involving nuisance and trespass or other relevant common law remedies

All power of suspending laws or the execution of laws, without consent of the representatives of the people are an abuse of authority and shall not be permitted.

The immutable right of every person to pursue any lawful vocation shall not be infringed, regulated or controlled. Civil government shall grant no privilege or franchise to any business, occupation, profession or persons.

One day of the week will be designated for a Sabbath rest, when no commercial or civil government undertakings, except vital functions, shall be permitted.

No forfeiture of any rights shall occur except after a wrongful act, an appropriate trial or proof procedure, a judgement of liability of guilt and a lawful punishment, incarceration or levy. This is referred to in this document as due process of law.

No slavery or slave trade shall be permitted.

No torture shall be allowed. This shall not include incarceration on lawful grounds after due process of law.

Everyone shall be entitled to due process of law in civil as well as criminal matters.

All persons from conception to natural death shall be equal before the law and to the protection thereof.

All persons have the right to an effective remedy for acts violating their constitutional fundamental rights and to be assisted in readily obtaining these remedies.

No one shall be subjected to arbitrary arrest, exile or detention without trial.

Everyone has the right to an adequate standard of living that would ensure the health and well-being of each individual within the family nucleus.

Disabled persons shall be entitled to all rights and shall be entitled to have an equal chance in exercising them.

In the exercise of one's rights and freedoms, every person shall be subject only to such limitations as are determined by law, solely for the purpose of securing due recognition and respect for the rights and freedoms of others and of meeting the just requirements of Biblical moral principles, public order and general welfare in a particular society.

AFRICAN CHRISTIAN DEMOCRATIC PARTY

SUBMISSION TO THEME COMMITTEE FOUR / BLOCK ONE

SUBMISSION ON THE USE OF THE TERM "EVERYONE" IN CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE II

POSITION OF THE UNBORN

The term 'everyone' includes all human beings, from conception to natural death. As such, even an unborn child should be afforded the protection given it's elder peer.

It is to be argued that even international human rights documents afford the unborn child fundamental human rights and, especially, the right to life.

Chief among these are the American Convention on Human Rights and the Declaration on the Right of the Child, 1959, which respectively refers to conception and the pre-natal condition of the child.

In January 1993, South Africa became signatory to the Convention on the Rights of a Child, 1989, which states that a child is any person under 18 years of age and thereby implicitly also from conception.

Reference of this article is also reflected in Section 30 of the Interim Constitution but it stops short of including the safeguard that, children have rights "before, as well as after, birth."

Our disregard for this provision, as stipulated in the above documents on Human Rights, can lead to a breach of our understanding as a country to conform to international human rights agreements and conventions. We the PARTY submit that an amendment be made to insert the missing clause in order to conform with the spirit of the child's full rights as described. Surely, to arbitrarily deny a child any of these rights, because of his or her age, is prohibited even in the language of our own Interim Constitution.

Arguments levelled against the granting of rights to unborn persons do not take into account the growing body of evidence in fetology, that proves life not to begin at birth, but that birth is a mere change in environment for the unborn person. As medical science progresses, boundaries are shifted as to sophistication and life support techniques and, thus, viability of existence outside of the mother's womb will eventually disappear as a test for when life is said to begin

Not to include unborn persons among those entitled to the universal and fundamental human rights that we as born members of the species esteem, is to negate the very values that we, as a society hold dear. The mere fact that these individuals are unable to claim their rights for being observable, is the same as to deny the unseen particles in quantum physics or the spectrum of electromagnetic waves and the like just as non-sensical

If the new Constitution is to be inclusive - giving everyone in South Africa a fair equal chance, we must not be seen to deny the existence of a few million people - that is the estimated number of unborn persons whom we want to deny legal rights

AFRICAN CHRISTIAN DEMOCRATIC PARTY

SUBMISSION TO THEME COMMITTEE FOUR / BLOCK ONE

SUBMISSION ON THE USE OF THE TERM "EVERYONE" IN CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 11

THE POSITION OF JURISTIC PERSONS

The interim Constitution, in Section 7 (3), states that the nature of the individual rights should dictate their applicability to juristic persons.

The western heritage of the rights culture may be traced back to it's birth and development by Christian law scholars of the canon law era (11th through 18th Centuries AD), by medieval Christian theologians and by civil law teaches working in a Christian intellectual framework.

The message of the Bible, which these scholars founded their teachings upon, was "unalienable rights" - rights of the person, which are God-given and which a person is not permitted to transfer or abdicate from

This concept of rights, as a God-given immutable, (incapable of restriction and reduction by government or other persons.) and "universal", (belonging to every person, regardless of circumstance or situation), has no parallel in either Greek or Roman philosophical thinking - it is of Christian origin and was rejected by Renaissance humanist and Enlightenment rationalists of the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries.

In this, the ACDP then disagrees with the ruling of the German Federal Constitutional Court's ruling that the concept of fundamental human rights is based on the liberty of the individual as a natural person

Despite the traditional reluctance in South African jurisprudence to cloth juristic person with human characteristics, it is submitted that, granting of rights to legal personae, will be acceptable, provided that the activities of such juristic persons be of a nature to that will enable the particular right to be applicable. A pertinent example will be that religious bodies will have freedom of religion as an entrenched and justiciable right.

It must, however, always be kept in mind where these rights originated and as such, justice, righteousness and mercy, are to be the lenses through which anyone wishing to apply them must, out of necessity, view them. God, in His all-encompassing wisdom, entrusted these to Man when He clothed the very first human beings with the authority to rule and to dominate the rest of creation. To create a position where these rights benefit the licentious and the unruly and to the detriment of the obedient and innocent, it will be a matter of time before the Supreme Creator steps in to establish His order and original authority.

- ANC

WHAT CONSTITUTES UNIVERSALLY ACCEPTED FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS

PRELIMINARY SUBMISSION BY ANC

Using Chapter 3 of the Interim Constitution as a point of departure, it is submitted that the fundamental rights listed therein are all to be regarded as universally accepted fundamental rights with the exception of the following:-

Section 19 - Residence

Section 24 - Administrative Justice

Section 26 - Economic Activity

In addition there are certain universally accepted fundamental rights which are not reflected in Chapter 3. They are the following:-

- The Right to Home Life
- Women's Rights
- Disabled Persons Rights
- Socio-Economic Rights, including : Freedom from Hunger

Right to Shelter

Right to Work

Right to Health

Welfare Rights

Right to Education

Right to Minimum

Income

The exercise of all rights must be subject to principles of non-racism and non-sexism.

- DP

NASIONALE HOOFKANTOOR NATIONAL HEAD OFFICE

@ 45-1431 ☎ 1475, 8000 FAX 461-5276



DEMOCRATIC PARTY SUBMISSION: BLOCK 2 THEME COMMITTEE 4

1. INTRODUCTION

It is unclear to the Democratic Party the precise meaning of the phrase "the nature of Bill of Rights and Application". However insofar as we understand the terminology employed we wish to make a preliminary submission as follows:

2. NATURE OF THE BILL OF RIGHTS

2.1 Potentially this covers the spectrum of so-called first, second and third generation rights. Since the question of the second and third generation (socio-economic) rights and their place, meaning and content in a future Bill of Rights is to be dealt with separately by the Theme Committee we do not intend to comment specifically until this topic is debated thoroughly at the relevant time.

The other implication of the nature of the Bill of Rights is the question of which rights are universally accepted as being "fundamental"? In our view the interim constitution adequately answers this question by insisting that the entire constitution adequately answers this question by insisting that the entire constitution, especially chapter 3, be interpreted so as to promote the concept of "liberty and equality". In our view those rights which promote liberty and equality are the universal norms.

2.2 Little purpose will be served by doing a comparative survey of the constitutions of the world in order to give meaning and content to this principle. Certainly, in respect of the first category of rights, an irreducible core already exists in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1993 (Act 200 of 1993). To a large extent these are not even discretionary since the Constitutional Assembly is bound, in terms of, especially constitutional principles 111, V, VIII, IX, XII to enshrine this irreducible core in the final constitution.

- 2.3 Without necessarily agreeing with the exact wording and specific content of each and every right contained in chapter 3 of the constitution we indicate below that the following sections of chapter 3 would certainly form part of the irreducible core of rights which should enjoy universal application:
 - 8: Commitment to Equality;
 - 9: Commitment to Life;
 - 10: Right to dignity;
 - 11: Freedom and security of person, including right against detention without trial;
 - 12: Right against servitude;
 - 13: Right to privacy;
 - 14: Freedom of belief (including religion);
 - 15: Freedom of expression;
 - 16: Right of free movement;
 - 17: Right of voluntary association;
 - 13: Right of peaceful assembly;
 - 19: Right of choice of residence;
 - 20: Rights of citizenship;
 - 21: Right of franchise and political activity;
 - 22: Right of access to independent courts/tribunals;
 - 23: Right of access to information;
 - 24: Right to fairness in respect of administrative acts;
 - 25: Right to criminal justice i.e. due process;
 - 26: Right to free economic activity;
 - 28: Right to property;
 - 31: Right to language and culture.

2.4 There certainly can be argument about the inclusion of further rights, but we believe that the aforementioned irreducible core of universally accepted norms are the minimum requirement consistent with a free society enjoying a culture of human rights.

3. APPLICATION OF BILL OF RIGHTS

- 3.1 The meaning and content of the application of Bill of Rights must, in the final analysis, answer the question "who is bound by the Bill of Rights"? Obviously the state, in all its emanations and organs is bound by the Bill of Rights. To the extent that this concept is established and codified by section 7(1) of the constitution, the Democratic Party agrees with it.
- 3.2 A problematic issue arises in respect of the judiciary itself. Is the judiciary understood to form part of the "state at all levels of government"? Section 7(1) of the Constitution suggests it does not, for the simple reason that it is excluded from the provisions of that section. However, section 35(3), dealing with the interpretation of the Bill of Rights, states -

"in the interpretation of any law and the application and development of the <u>common law</u> and customary law, a court shall have due regard to the spirit, purport and objects of this chapter".

This suggests that, by necessary implication via the common law, the judiciary is bound by the Bill of Rights.

3.3 The entire question of application cannot be determined until the issue of horizontality and verticality is resolved. The essence of the common law deals with private relations in society. To the extent that this has already been debated under block 1 it is worth restating the Democratic Party proposition is that there is no reason why, subject to the proper safeguards, the Bill of Rights should not apply horizontally. The private law should be made congruent to laws applying to state action. One may illustrate this by use of two simple examples:-

- Its actions and disciplinary procedures will be bound therefore by the due process provisions of the Bill of Rights.

 But if we contrast this position against that of a major corporation, vastly more powerful than a university administration, we could find that the private corporation is not bound to conduct its disciplinary or ordinary procedures in accordance with the Bill of Rights. This anomaly is obviously unacceptable.
- II. When it comes to a defamation action by, for example, a local municipal councillor, who is a member of the organs of state, he will be in a completely different position because of the vertical application of the Bill of Rights than, for example, a company director involved in a similar defamation action who is not bound by the Bill of Rights because it has no horizontal application. This anomaly, too, cannot be justified.
- It is the contention of the Democratic Party that if we are at all concerned with the principles of justification and the use of power, which we should be, then the Bill of Rights should not be a party to drawing an arbitrary line in the sand between state power and social power. Generally speaking, childrens' rights, labour rights and rights to free speech will not really have much meaning or impact if they are solely confined to conferring obligations on the state. Obviously they should have wider implication. However, we reiterate our view, contained in the report on block 1, that such application has to be very carefully considered and an audit will have to be undertaken of all the provisions of the Bill of Rights to ensure that its horizontal applicability does not lead to gross injustices, impractical anomalies, or absurd consequences. We believe such an audit is both practical and necessary.

4. THE BILL OF RIGHTS AND THE DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE

- 4.2 We understand this topic to be largely redundant because insofar as we are dealing with the vertical application of the Bill of Rights to a core of universally accepted fundamental freedoms it is trite to observe that such rights are essentially defensive or negative in character and form. They constrain the state from doing certain things i.e. the state shall not do X or Y.
- 4.3 The crucial point here, however, concerns second and third generation rights which are positive in nature and oblige the state to take actions and incur expenditure in the interests of the holder of the right. The difficulty here is that this leads to confusion in the role of the judiciary with that of the legislature.

There are certain more subtle arguments which also require consideration. However, we believe that this is more properly discussed, for the reasons stated above, when the Theme Committee and the Constitutional Assembly considers the nature, place and purpose of so-called second and third generation rights.

5. THE BILL OF RIGHTS AND THE DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITIZEN

- 5.1 The Democratic Party fully subscribes to the view that the citizen has rights and obligations. However, it is the purpose, primarily, of statute law to regulate the obligations of citizens to the state and to his or her fellow citizens. It is quite clear that obligations of citizens towards each other will only come into play when the Constitutional Assembly has resolved the question of the horizontal application of this bill. We need comment no further on this issue beyond that which is contained in the aforegoing paragraphs and in our previous submissions to the Constitutional Theme Committee.
- 5.2 However, the immediate issue to be disposed of is whether the Bill of Rights should create citizen's obligations towards the state. In our view this is pre-eminently a question to be disposed of by legislation on a wide variety of fields.

The core fundamental of a democracy remains the rights which citizens obtain from the state and not the other way around. What obligations are we to cast on the individual beyond the presumption that he or she has to obey the law and the constitution itself? On this there should be no debate whatsoever and it is up to the legislature and the executive to ensure compliance therewith. However, if it is proposed to cast obligations on citizens, in rigid terms, in a Bill of Rights then the Democratic Party believes we are creating a significant problem. If the bill attempts to enumerate a set of rights against the citizen, held by the state, then we in fact will limit essentially the citizen's obligation to those which are codified in the Bill of Rights. In fact the state has almost limitless theoretical rights against the citizen constrained essentially by two factors:-

- (i) Regular Elections; and
- (ii) The Constitution itself, especially the Bill of Rights.

For these reasons we do not believe this issue requires further consideration.

A J LEON MP DEMOCRATIC PARTY

16.02.95

- FF



VRYHEIDSFRONT

P.O. Box 74693 Lynnwood Ridge 0040 Tel. (012) 47-4477 47-4375 47-4450/54/14/58

1st Floor Atrium
Perseus Pa
cor. Camelia and Priory Roa
Lynnwood Rid
Fax (012) 47-43

FREEDOM FRONT

THEME COMMITTEE 4 (FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS)

SUBMISSION ON UNIVERSALLY ACCEPTED FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS

The Freedom Front proposes that Theme Committee 4 should adopt the following procedure:

- (i) To <u>draw up</u> a list of all or virtually all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties;
- (ii) To add to the above-mentioned list some rights that are particularly relevant in the case of South Africa by virtue of 'diversity of language and culture' (Constitutional Principle XI) and other relevant Constitutional Principles;
- (111) To improve, both as to content and form, the extended list referred to in paragraph 2 above, using chapter 3 of the transitional constitution as a guide, as well as any other material that may be relevant to South African circumstances.

At this stage the Theme Committee is concerned only with (i) above. The Freedom Front herewith submits a paraphrase of the rights mentioned in the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights 1966, with the submission that this international instrument provides the closest approximation to all universally accepted fundamental rights. The Freedom Front contends that the phrase 'all universally accepted fundamental rights' in Constitutional Principle II cannot be understood literally, as it would be impossible to extract from the constitutions of all states identical human rights. The phrase should rather be interpreted as 'all fundamental rights generally or predominantly accepted by the world community', which would exclude rights that are peculiar to particular regions. It is in this sense that the above-mentioned paraphrase is hereby tendered for consideration.

A paraphrase of the rights mentioned in the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights 1966 is also attached for consideration, although these rights cannot be said to be universally accepted.

List of universally accepted fundamental rights (paraphrase of rights contained in the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights):

- 1. All peoples have the right of self-determination;
- No distinction of any kind is to be drawn between people on any grounds;
- 3. Men and women to have equal enjoyment of all civil and political rights set out in this Covenant;
- State measures derogating from obligations of parties to this Covenant in time public emergency are permissible, but only to a very limited extent;
- 5. No one (states, groups or persons) may act in a way aimed at the destruction of any of the rights and freedoms recognised in this Covenant, nor should there be any restriction upon or derogation from them on certain pretexts;
- 6. There is an inherent right to life, which is to be protected by law, but such right is qualified by the death penalty in certain circumstances;
- Torture and cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment is prohibited;
- Slavery and servitude, as well as forced or compulsory labour, as defined, is prohibited;
- There is a right to liberty and security of the person, with certain qualifications allowed by law;
- 10. All persons deprived of liberty are to be treated with humanity and with respect for the inherent dignity of the human person;
- 11. There may be no imprisonment merely on the ground of inability to fulfil a contractual obligation;
- 12. Everyone lawfully within a state has a right of liberty of movement, freedom to choose his residence, to leave any country and to enter his own country, subject to certain qualifications;
- 13. Expulsion of aliens lawfully within states parties to the Covenant may take place only on legal grounds;
- 14. All persons have a right of equality before courts and tribunals (together with a large number of concomitant rights, especially in criminal proceedings);
- 15. Criminal law may not have retrospective operation;

- 16. Everyone has the right to recognition everywhere as a person before the law;
- 17. Arbitrary or unlawful interference with privacy, family, home or correspondence, honour and reputation is prohibited;
- 18. Everyone has the right to freedom of thought, conscience and religion;
- 19. Everyone has the right to hold opinions without interference and the right to freedom of expression, as defined;
- 20. Any propaganda for war shall be prohibited by law, as well as the advocacy of certain other anti-social acts;
- 21. The right of peaceful assembly, with certain specified exceptions, shall be recognised;
- 22. The right of everyone to freedom of association with others, including the right to join and form trade unions. No restrictions may be placed on the exercise of this right other than those which are prescribed by law and which are necessary in a democratic society in the interests of national security or public safety, public order, the protection of public health or morals or the protection of the rights and freedoms of others;
- 23. Family rights, in the context of protection of the family as the natural and fundamental group unit of society;
- 24. Rights of children, including protection against certain acts and the right to acquire a nationality;
- 25. Every citizen is entitled (without unreasonable restrictions) to take part in the conduct of public affairs, directly or indirectly; to vote and to be elected at genuine periodic elections (universal and equal suffrage and secret ballot); to have access on an equal basis with others to public service in his country;
- 26. All persons are equal before the law and entitled without any discrimination to the equal protection of the law;
- 27. Persons belonging to minorities (ethnic, religious or linguistic) are not to be denied the right, in community with other members of their group, to enjoy their own culture, to profess and practise their own religion, or to use their own language.

List of rights (paraphrase of rights contained in the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights):

- 1. The right of self-determination of all peoples;
- An undertaking by parties to the Covenant to attempt to achieve progressively the full realisation of the rights recognised in this Covenant;
- 3. An undertaking by parties to the Covenant to ensure the equal right of men and women to the enjoyment of all economic, social and cultural rights set forth in the Covenant;
- 4. Recognition that state parties may subject rights under this Covenant only to such limitations as are determined by law only in so far as this may be compatible with the nature of these rights and solely for the purpose of promoting the general welfare in a democratic society;
- 5. Prohibition of any interpretation of the Covenant of acts aimed at the destruction of any of the rights or freedoms recognised in the Covenant, or their limitation to a greater extent than is provided for in the Covenant, as well as the prohibition of restrictions upon or derogation from any of the fundamental rights recognised in a certain manner;
- 6. The right to work;
- The rights of everyone to the enjoyment of just and favourable conditions of work, ensuring certain enumerated aims;
- 8. The right of everyone to form trade unions, as well as the right to strike, subject to certain qualifications;
- The right of everyone to social security, including social insurance;
- 10. Recognition of the widest possible protection and assistance to be accorded to the family, with special measures of protection for young mothers and all children and young persons;
- 11. Recognition of the right of everyone to an adequate standard of living for himself and his family, including adequate food, clothing and housing, and to the continuous improvement of living conditions.
- 12. Recognition of the right of everyone to the enjoyment of the highest attainable standard of physical and mental health.
- 13. Recognition of the right of everyone to education (with certain defined aims). With a view to achieving of the full realisation of this right, recognition that (a) primary education shall be compulsory and available free to all; (b) secondary education in its different forms, shall be

made generally available and accessible to all by every appropriate means, and in particular by the progressive introduction of free education;

- 14. An undertaking to implement within a specified time compulsory primary education free of charge for all, and, within a specified reasonable period, of the progressive implementation of the principle of compulsory education free of charge for all;
- 15. Recognition of the right of everyone: (a) to take part in cultural life; (b) to enjoy the benefits of scientific progress and its applications, (c) to benefit from the protection of the moral and material interests resulting from any scientific, literary or artistic production of which he is the author.

- IFP

-



INKATHA

Inkatha Freedom Party

IQembu leNkatha Yenkululeko

SUPPLEMENTAL SUBMISSION¹ TO THEME COMMITTEE No. 4 FOR BLOCK No. 1

In terms of points 7.1.2 and 7.1.3 of the Report on Block 1 of this Theme Committee, the IFP hereby tables this additional submission as a supplement and as an integral part of the submissions previously made.

PART_1 APPLICABILITY OF THE BILL OF RIGHTS TO "EVERYONE"

- 1. Constitutional Principle II indicates that everyone shall enjoy universally accepted fundamental rights, freedom and civil liberties. From an interpretative viewpoint "everyone" may or may not refer to juristic person and/or non-South African persons within the Republic.
- 2. In terms of applicable international declarations and covenants the protection of fundamental freedom and liberties must be ensured both to respect to citizens as well as foreigners while they are within the territory of the Republic. However this applies only with respect to first generation human rights such as freedoms of speech and religion and freedom from unwarranted arrest, search and seizure, et cetera. Usually the entitlement to second generation human rights, such as the rights to education, work, and medical assistance, is limited to citizens or to residents only. The IFP believes that these second generation rights should be limited only to citizens, which leaves open the possibility that the competent legislature may extend them also to residents by means of applicable laws.
- Preliminarily it must be said that some of the human rights are inherently not applicable to juristic persons, as it might be the case of the right to health. However it must be considered that in the final analysis juristic persons are in reality an associative phenomenon made of

The IFP makes this submission under protest, for the Constitutional Committee should withhold consideration of the matters covered in this report and further development of the work program so as to allow international mediation to take place.

². Compare with the UN Declaration of Human Rights of Individuals who are not Nationals of the Country in which They Live (1985).

physical persons. If the right to privacy to a juristic person may be violated, it is the correspondence of individuals which may be opened and their telephone conversations which may be tapped. Similarly were the right against unwarranted search and seizure not to apply to juristic persons, government could search and seize properties of a corporation, even if from a substantive viewpoint such properties belong to the individuals who form such corporation as much as that property which those individuals have in their respective houses.

- 4. It must also be considered that juristic persons have an essential role both in the economic system and the enjoyment of basic human rights and freedom, such as is the case for commercial cooperations and private associations. Therefore, the applicability of the bill of rights to protect juristic person will also foster economic development and the protection of pluralism in society by means of securing the position of individuals within the social economic, cultural and political formation in which they develop their activities and personal life experience.
- 5. Usually in modern constitutions the need does not arise to protect associative phenomena which are not established as juristic persons, such as unstructured groups. In fact, this phenomena are usually sufficiently protected by the extension of human right protection which is recognized to individuals who comprise it. To the extend that human rights protection is specifically recognized to juridic persons, the need does not arise to provide similar recognition for unstructured associative phenomena.
- 6. In conclusion, human rights shall be applied also to juristic persons to the extent that the nature of the human right concerned so allows. Any relevant decision in this respect should be left to the development of constitutional jurisprudence by the Constitutional Court, so as to accommodate the fact that today it is necessary to protect juristic persons from human right violation which a few years ago were felt not to interfere with the scope of actions of juristic person.
- 7. Finally, since at present the interim Constitution @ section 7 (3) extend the application of Chapter 3 to juristic persons, the Constitutional Assembly has no discretion to reduce this aspect of human right protection and may not decide that the Bill of Rights does not apply with respect to juristic persons. As it is more fully explained in Part 4 infra. Constitutional Principle II does not allow to go below the "hard bottom" set out in Chapter 3.

PART 2 "ALL UNIVERSALLY ACCEPTED FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS, FREEDOM AND LIBERTIES"

THE BILL OF RIGHTS IN THE CONSTITUTION

1. The Constitution shall not provide for less human rights protection than what it is provided for in Chapter 3 of the interim constitution.

- 2. In its Constitution, South Africa shall commit itself to recognize, protect and promote all internationally recognized human rights as they are expressed in (a) prevailing trends of modern constitutions, (b) international declarations and covenants on human rights and (c) international treaties of general or regional application.
- 3. All recognized human rights shall be regarded as fundamental human rights.
- 4. All the rights, freedom and liberties listed in the following documents should be considered as universally accepted and recognized³.
 - a. UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights,
 - b. UN International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights,
 - c. UN International Covenant on, Economic, Social and Cultural Rights,
 - d. UN Third International Covenant on Peoples' and Indigenous Rights,
 - e. Africa's Banjul Charter on Human and People's Rights,
 - f. European Declaration for the Safeguard of Human Rights.
- 5. International Conventions related to specialized subject matters, such as those related to Children's rights, Marriage Rights, Labour Rights and International Labour Organization-sponsored Conventions, and World Health Organization-sponsored conventions.
- In addition human rights usually recognized and protected in modern constitution should also be considered as following within the scope of application of Constitutional Principle II. Since human rights are a constitutional reality in continuous progress and development special attention shall be given to the most recent constitutions. It should be also noted that within a federal system the most advanced human right protection its usually embodied in the constitution of the members states rather than in the national one. It is suggested that the human rights recognized and protected in the following constitution be considered as falling within the scope of application of Constitutional Principle II.
 - a. Spanish Constitution of 1978,
 - b. The Nigerian Constitution of 1989,
 - c. The Constitution of the State of Alaska of 1988,
 - d. The Constitution of the State of Hawaii as amended in 1979,
 - e. The Constitution of Liberia of 1984
 - f. The Constitution of Canada of 1982.

EVOLUTIVE CLAUSE, OPEN LIST OF RIGHTS

1. The Constitution shall make provision for the updating and evolution of human rights protection, which are historically an ever changing field of law.

For a full recognizance of internationally recognized human rights as per 1987, see the documentation collected in *Human Rights Source Book* edited by A. Blaustein, R.S. Clark and J. Sigler, Paragon House Publishers, New York, 1987.

2. The following constitutional text ought to be considered:

Human rights in the Constitution4

All fundamental human rights and all those other rights which are inherent to fundamental human needs and aspirations as they evolve with the changes and growth of society, and as they will be recognisable on the basis of the principles underlying the provisions of this constitution, are hereby entrenched in this constitution and in their essential content shall not be modified by virtue of constitutional amendments.

RESIDUAL RIGHTS OF THE PEOPLE

1. The Constitution shall entrench the principle of freedom as the fundamental principle underlying the legal system. The following text should be considered:

11. Rule of Freedom

All conduct and activities which are not prohibited shall be permitted. The Republic of South Africa may prohibit and regulate conduct and activities for a demonstrable State's interest founded on public interests and welfare.

2. The Constitution shall entrench the principle that all powers of government derive from the people who are the depository of any residual power which is not exercised by the government. The following language ought to be considered:

1. Inherent Rights and Obligations

The Republic of South Africa acknowledges and recognises that all individuals have the natural right to life, liberty and the pursuit of happiness, and to the enjoyment of the rewards of their own industry; that all individuals are equal and entitled to equal rights, opportunities and protection under the law, and that all individuals have corresponding obligations to the State and a general obligation of social responsibility to the people of the Republic.

2. Source of Government

All political power is inherent in the people. All government originates with the people, is founded only upon their will, and is instituted only for the good of the people as a whole. Government shall respect and encourage the exercise of the power of the people to organise and regulate their interests autonomously.

LIST OF HUMAN RIGHTS

1. The Constitution shall list, entrench and protect at least the following rights and areas of

^{4.} All constitutional text in this submission consists of excerpts from the draft constitution of the Federal Republic of South Africa, submitted by the IFP to the World Trade Centre in June 1993.

constitutional protection:

- Freedom of speech
- Freedom of religion
- Physical and psychological integrity
- Liberty
- Travel and movement
- Privacy
- Assembly and association
- Free enterprise
- Contractual autonomy
- Private property
- Political rights
- Freedom of the media
- Freedom to access government information
- Family rights
- Right to bear arms
- Cultural and traditions
- Procreative freedom
- Right to work
- Free enterprise
- Functional private property
- Communal property
- Right to education
- Health care
- Housing
- Sanitation
- Labor law and labor rights
- Protection of women, senior citizens and youth
- Autonomy of Universities, research, arts and culture
- Autonomy of trade unions and political parties
- Environmental rights
- Cultural rights
- Minority rights
- Rights of ethnicity and self determination
- Group rights
- Autonomy of social and cultural formations
- Preeminence of civil society
- Preservation of traditional communities and role of traditional leaders

PART 3 ENTRENCHMENT AND JUSTICIABILITY OF RIGHTS

JUSTICIABILITY OF FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS

- 1. All fundamental human rights shall be fully justiciable.
- 2. For specific rights which require implementing action on the side of the government justiciability will also be determined by the actual wording of such rights and to a great extent may depend on the provisions of the legislation required to fulfil and implement such rights.
- Justiciability of rights is also intrinsically limited by the fact that the Constitution recognizes conflicting rights, such as the right to privacy and the right to freedom of information and media.
- 4. The Constitution must contain a general provision guiding constitutional adjudication. The following text ought to be considered:
 - 16. Justiciability of rights

All rights and freedoms recognised and guaranteed under this constitution shall be justiciable to the fullest practical and reasonable extent. In the case of a violation of the rights and freedoms recognised and guaranteed under this constitution any aggrieved party shall be entitled to be heard by a court of record on the basis of urgency and, upon showing a *prima facie* violation of rights, shall be granted preliminary relief pending the final disposition of the case.

FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS AND CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS

- The essential content of fundamental rights shall not be modified by virtue of constitutional amendments of any type.
- 2. Any constitutional amendment shall be approved by special majorities and with special procedures, including separate approvals and a cooling-off period.

PART 4 "DUE CONSIDERATION TO INTER ALIA THE FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS CONTAINED CHAPTER 3"

- 1. The Constitution shall not provide for less human rights protection than what it is provided for in Chapter 3 of the interim constitution.
- 2. The IFP submits that the above captioned language of Constitutional Principle II requires that none of the rights recognized in Chapter 3 be omitted or in anyway diluted in the new Constitution. The legislative history of the specific formulation of this Constitutional

Principle is absolutely clear in this respect. This language derived from a decision of the Negotiating Council which moved a similar provision from the body of one of the first drafts of Chapter 3 to Schedule 4 for consistency purposes intending to preserve its normative value. This provision intended to establish Chapter 3 as the "hard bottom" of human right protection, and it was moved to Schedule 4 because it prescribed with respect to the drafting of a new constitution.

PART 5 VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL APPLICATION OF RIGHTS

A human right can be defined as a individual or collective area of entitlement and\or autonomy which the legal system does not wish to allow to be violated. There is a constitutional presumption that the law alone is not sufficient or adequate to fully protect and entrench a given human right, and that therefore the reinforced protection of a rigid constitution is to be sought.

Human rights may be violated by government as well as by any order entity. In the absence of a controlling constitutional provision, the law could allow either the government as well as a private entity to violate any right concerned. For instance the right to privacy may be violated by the action of government intercepting telephone communications or by the actions of an employer intercepting the same telephone communication of an employee. Similarly, the unwarranted search and seizure shall be constitutionally prohibited both in case of government's action as well as action of entities other than government.

Theoretically any human right could be violated in a similar fashion by a comparable action of either the government or of an entity other the government. There would be no justification for being satisfied with the protection of an area of entitlement and/or autonomy from that which government may do, if we are insensitive to the fact that the very same interests are in jeopardy because of actions of other entities which are still operating under and in term of the same legal system to which government belongs.

It must be stressed that protecting an area of entitlement and/or autonomy from violative actions on the side of entities other than government has absolutely no effect whatsoever on the extent to which the right is protected. It is erroneous to believe that if the bill of rights has horizontal application the "content" of any given right is extended, for the content remains the same while its area of protection is extended with respect to additional possible violations.

Nowadays none of the democratic constitutions of Western countries limits the application of the bill of rights to the relation between government and its subjects only. In fact, the idea of an exclusively vertical application of the bill of right its repugnant to universally recognized notions of human right protection and constitutional decency. Why would anyone allow that freedoms of speech, religion and political association be protected from the abusive or interfering action of government but not from the equally damaging action of an employer, schoolmaster or simple

neighbor?

In a South African context the horizontal application of the bill of rights its also an absolute necessity to ensure that a culture of human right protection developed also with respect to all significant relation under the control of the state. This is essential to ensure that our people's rights are not violated in legal or factual relations which are often characterized by enormous disparities in the economic and social powers of the parties concerned.

NATURE OF THE BILL OF RIGHTS:

- 1. The Bill of Rights shall have horizontal application in addition to vertical application.
- 2. The applicable test shall require that the Bill of Rights is extended to "all significant legal relations which are under the control of the State."
- 3. The Bill of Rights shall be entrenched in the national constitution but shall be implemented exclusively by provincial legislation and executive action with respect to the matters of provincial competence (i.e.: employment/labor, health, education, welfare, environment et cetera).

The national government might have the power to coordinate this implementing role of Provinces. The jurisprudence of the Constitutional Court will also give a uniform interpretation of the applicable constitutional parameters.

In accordance with point 7.1.4 of the Report of this Theme Committee, the IFP will make detailed submissions on the implications and/or consequences of the horizontal application of human rights protection with respect to each human right concern. In following Blocks each human rights will be specifically considered and discussed, and our submissions will demonstrate that it is not desirable nor acceptable to refuse protection to any right concerned if such right is capable of been violated by entities other than government.

DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS

- In addition to a Bill of Rights the constitution shall also contain a Bill of Duties and Obligation. Many aspects of the Constitution would reflect the presence of a Bill of Duties and Obligation.
- 2. It is important to develop a culture of social obligations and civic duties, in addition to a culture of human right protection. The constitution must show that no right comes without corresponding obligations.
- 3. The following provisions ought to be considered:

PREAMBLE

WE, the people of South Africa, mindful of our unique and diverse heritage, inspired by the desire to secure the blessings of democracy, freedom and pluralism for our and future generations, respecting the equality of all men and women, recognising the

right of people to organise themselves in autonomy and independence at all levels of society, desiring to ensure that individual rights and liberties are accompanied by obligations of social solidarity to others, determined to guarantee that the rights of all people are protected both as individuals and members of social and cultural formations, do now ordain and establish this constitution for the Republic of South Africa to provide both the people of South Africa as well as the Provinces with a national government to serve their individual and collective needs, wants and aspirations.

1. Inherent Rights and Obligations

The Republic of South Africa acknowledges and recognises that all individuals have the natural right to life, liberty and the pursuit of happiness, and to the enjoyment of the rewards of their own industry; that all individuals are equal and entitled to equal rights, opportunities and protection under the law, and that all individuals have corresponding obligations to the State and a general obligation of social responsibility to the people of the Republic.

2.- 58. [...]

OBLIGATIONS AND DUTIES

59. Allegiance to the Constitution

All citizens shall have the duty to uphold this constitution and live by the rule of law. All those who hold any of the offices provided for in this constitution shall take an oath or a solemn affirmation to uphold and defend this constitution, obey the law and exercise their public functions with discipline and honour.

60. Contribution to Public Expenditures and Needs

- a. All citizens have the duty to contribute to the common needs and to public expenditure by reasons of their resources. [...]
- b. The Republic of South Africa shall encourage voluntary charitable activities and other forms of expression of social solidarity.

61. Military obligations

All citizens have the sacred duty to defend the territory of the Republic of South Africa from any external enemy and from any threat to the enjoyment of freedom, democracy and pluralism in the Republic.

62. Duty to work

All capable citizens have the duty to contribute with their work and skills to the common development and growth of the Republic

63. Family duties

All citizens have the duty to provide moral and financial support to their spouses, to educate their children and to assist their parents when in need of care.
[...]

PART 6 GENERAL DISCUSSION OF APPLICABLE CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLES

- 1. Constitutional Principles III, IV, V, VII, VIII, XI, XII (1), XXVIII, XXXIV may relate in several aspects to the identification of rights to be protected and to the measure and means of their protection and justiciability. Additional Principles may either directly or indirectly apply. Among them those Principles which relate to the powers and functions of Provinces, which shall implement the Bill of Rights with respect to all matters of their competence.
- 2. The application of each of the Constitutional Principles will need to be discussed with respect to each specific Human Right concerned, which exercise will form the object of discussions and reports at a later stage in work of this Theme Committee.
- 3. For instance Constitutional Principles I, III, V relate to the equality clause which will be the object of the second report of Block 2.
- 4. Constitutional Principles IV and VII relate to the enforcement, limitation, interpretation and suspension of the Bill of Rights which will need to be specifically addressed in Block 3 and 10, which in this respect will need to be rephrased to reflect the need to specifically address the issue of justiciability of the Bill of Rights by the Constitutional Court and by the ordinary courts.
- 5. Constitutional Principles XI and XII relate to an essential aspect to our Bill of Rights which inter alia will need to entrench and protect pluralism, recognizing the constitutional autonomy of social and cultural formation with respect to all interest which such formations are able to regulate by themselves, as we indicated in the previous submission of the IFP to this Theme Committee.
- 6. Constitutional Principle VIII relates to the freedom of information and access to government information which will be addressed in Block 6, while Constitutional Principle XXVIII relates to important labour and political rights to be addressed in Block 5.
- Finally Constitutional Principle XXXIV relates to the issue of self-determination and will characterize the identification and definition of a large number of rights being analyzed by this Theme Committee. Specifically, this Constitutional Principle supports the need to develop a Bill of Rights which also entrenches the constitutional autonomy of social, cultural and economic formations with respect to all matters for which a government does not have a compelling public interest to justify its regulatory or otherwise interfering legislative or administrative action.

0741.1

February 17, 1995

- NP

THEME COMMITTEE 4 : NATIONAL PARTY SUBMISSION
BLOCKS 1 & 2

NOTES ON ASPECTS PERTAINING TO BILLS OF RIGHTS

1. THE NATURE AND ORIGIN OF A BILL OF RIGHTS

Existing bills of rights, in the municipal sense, can be classified into three main categories based on the origin of their contents:

- the reactive bills of rights that owe their origin to a particular crisis in the history of the state. Examples in this regard are the American constitution and bill of rights which were conditioned by the repressive conduct of the pre-1776 British colonial rule; the French Declaration des Droits de l' Homme et du Citoyen (1789) reflects a response to conditions of the pre-revolutionary period; the catalogue of fundamental rights of the German Basic Law was in reaction to the atrocities of Nazism; the protection of fundamental rights and freedoms, together with the Principles of State Policy in the constitution of Namibia, inter alia address the problem of institutionalized racism
- the bills of rights which seek to preserve a certain continuity, viz. entailing norms which have already become established in the legal tradition of society.

The Canadian Charter (1982) serves as an example of this kind of bill.

- superimposed bills of rights. They simply contain borrowed provisions or mainly consist of copies of other instruments; they are unrelated to the history of the country concerned and do not address the particular needs of the particular society. Most post-colonial bills of rights of African countries fall within this category.

(Cf van der Vyver JD "Constitutional Options for post-apartheid South Africa" vol 40 no. 3 Emory Law Journal, Summer 1991 785 - 7)

The current phase of development in South Africa probably reflects elements of both categories 1 and 2. On the one hand, the introduction of a fully-fledged bill of rights into the final Constitution can be regarded as a definite reaction to a past of strife, conflict, discrimination (including racism) and institutionalized apartheid. On the other hand, human rights-orientated documents such as the Freedom Charter, numerous proposed bills of rights from various political parties, and the South African Law Commissions proposals, all in some way contributed to the inclusion of Chapter 3 in the current Constitution. In that sense, Chapter 3 can be seen as the culmination of a gradual move towards the establishment of a

genuine human rights dispensation in South Africa. Since its inception Chapter 3 has, moreover, set the trend as well as provided a foundation for establishing a proper and fully-fledged bill of rights as part of the new Constitution.

The South African bill of rights should, in a balanced way, be the product of and reflect elements from all three the major categories set out above: it should be decisively antidiscriminatory and pro-equality, whilst, simultaneously, upholding liberty; it should preserve those accomplishments which had already been attained in the establishment of a human rights culture in this country and it should incorporate the universally accepted and proven principles contained in other instruments, to the extent that South African conditions require and permit.

In modern terms, the nature of a bill of rights is closely interrelated to the concept of constitutionalism. In the words of Prof van der Vyver:

"One should put one's trust in the principle of constitutionalism (the Rechtsstaatsidee), which requires, among other things, that the powers of government be meticulously circumscribed by law, and in particular, that measures for the curtailment of political powers be incorporated into a justiciable constitution.

Constitutionalism seeks to promote legitimacy of a particular regime through the principles of representative government

(democracy), and counteracts the abuse of power through the principle of legality (a government of laws and not persons). (op. cit 765).

2. APPLICATION

Questions pertaining to the nature of bills of rights are inextricably linked to questions pertaining to their application, for the former (the nature) determines the latter. Van der Vyver (op cit 771) defines a bill of rights as "a constitutional instrument in which the basic rights and freedoms of the subordinates of state authority are defined and afforded protection by means of constitutional entrenchment against the exercise of legislative and executive powers".

Who, then, can be regarded as subordinates of state authority? Does the term only apply to natural persons?

The current Constitution in s. 7(3) states that "juristic persons shall be entitled to the rights contained in this Chapter where, and to the extent that, the nature of the rights permits" It is, furthermore, noteworthy that s 7(4)(b) inter alia bestows standing on "an association acting in the interests of its members" (s. 7(4)(b)(ii) as well as on "a person acting as a member of or in the interest of a group or class of persons" (s. 7(4)(b)(iv)).

There are no reasons in logic or in law why these provisions should not be retained, also as they are in compliance with modern thinking and trends. Society does not only consist of individuals: "A plurality of associations as "society" is seen as interposed between the individual and the state. This is vital, both as an expression of the need to congregate and as a buffer against all-powerful central authority "(Prof Ulrich Karpen "Application of the Basic Law" in Starck (ed) Main

Principles of the German Basic Law at 68).

Prof Karpen then goes on to say: "But we must stress as well that defining separate spheres of private, associations and government is essential as a pre-requisite of freedom" and also that "the state is a creature of society and men, and the individual and his voluntary associations are not at mercy of government" (at 68).

To deny "non-natural persons" certain protection along lines to be indicated by the courts, would amount to a denial of those institutions as being essential elements of society, (and as has been pointed out by Prof Karpen, supra). Important institutions, such as the press, should be entitled to claim the protection of the fundamental right to freedom of expression, as should churches be entitled to claim freedom of religion, belief and opinion, and so on. To do otherwise, would be a step backwards compared to the stage of development which has been reached in this country.

3. VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL APPLICATION

The next issue pertaining to the application of the bill of rights concerns the so-called <u>vertical and horizontal</u> application thereof. There can be no doubt that bills of rights had initially been intended to only apply vertically. There seems to be unanimity of opinion amongst South African commentators that the current Chapter 3 although primarily designed to apply vertically, also finds definite and substantive horizontal application.

Apart from the fact that bills of rights by definition are devised to primarily apply vertically (see e.g. the definition by Van der Vyver supra), the necessity for their horizontal application has been given recognition in most jurisdictions. Horizontal application, however, never applies in an unqualified way. For example, in the USA, horizontal application is mostly tied up with the doctrine of "state action"; "It is state action of a particular character that is prohibited. Individual invasion of individual rights is not the subject-matter of the Amendment" However, the US Supreme Court, in order to strike down discriminatory practices in private-law relations, at times bent backwards to construct "state action". Also, the Civil Rights Acts were utilized to stamp out discriminatory practices which fall out of reach of the Bill of Rights itself.

The current s. 35(3) of the interim Constitution shows some

remarkable similarities with the method followed in Germany. In that country, the Constitutional Court has applied the principles enshrined in the catalogue of fundamental rights to non-public law spheres of the law in a more disciplined and consistent manner than its American counterpart. The Court thus identified a certain "objective order of values" that derives from the specific provisions of the Basic Law and which serves as a guide in the construction of all branches of the law. In this way, the guiding principles of the Basic Law find application in private law, particularly to the extent that such application will result in a "betterment" of private law.

Similarly, our s. 35(3) provides: "In the interpretation of any law (1) and the application (2) and development (3) of the common law (4) and customary law (5), a court shall (6) have due regard to the spirit, purport and objects (7) of this chapter" Thus a court is obliged (shall (6)) when interpreting any law (1) (viz. including all statutory law) and the development (3) (i.e. betterment / improvement) of the common law (4) (i.e. all private law and non-state law) and customary law (5) (including indigenous law), to apply the spirit, purport and objects (7) (i.e. the values underpinning) Chapter 3.

Any remaining possibility of "private discrimination" is moreover, eliminated by s. 33(4).

4. "ALL UNIVERSALLY ACCEPTED FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS, FREEDOMS AND CIVIL LIBERTIES"

Constitutional Principle II proclaims in peremptory terms that "everyone shall enjoy all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties which shall be provided for and protected by entrenched and justiciable provisions in the Constitution...."

The reference to "all universally accepted fundamental rights" etc., should, firstly, be evaluated in the context of the wide variety of international instruments for the protection of such rights, and which include:

- The United Nations Charter i.e. the Universal Declaration of Human Rights (1948);
- The International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (1966);
- The International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (1966);
- The International Covenant on the Elimination of all forms of Racial Discrimination (1965)

Due cognizance should also be taken of the United Nations' Declaration on the rights of persons belonging to National Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic Minorities (adopted by the General Assembly by its Resolution 47/135 on 18 December 1992).

International "regional" instruments include;

- The African Charter on Human and People's Rights (1981);
- The American Declaration of Rights and Duties of Man (1948)
- The European Convention on Human Rights (1950) together with its various Protocols.

The methodology to be followed in ascertaining which rights etc., ought to be included will, in practical terms, probably follow the course of checking inclusion of any right proposed for inclusion, against the contents of, at least, these instruments.

In view of the peremptory wording of Constitution Principle II, the onus for the exclusion of any right which prima facie falls within the ambit of a universally accepted fundamental right, shall rest on the party alleging that such right should not be included.

Finally, the importance of public international law (including international humanitarian law) as a source for qualifying the concept under consideration, should be recognized. In that regard, the current Constitution sets certain examples worth pursuing e.g. s. 35(1), which dictates that public international

law shall be taken cognizance of by the courts, s. 116(2), which enjoins the Human Rights Commission to evaluate proposed legislation against "norms of international human rights law which form part of South African law or other relevant norms of international law" and s. 119(3), pertaining to gender issues.

5. CREATING A HUMAN RIGHTS CULTURE

South Africa has in recent times, made remarkable progress in pursuing the objective of establishing a vibrant human rights culture. Various community-based projects have been initiated and it can safely be said that, at the very least, the body politic as well as civil society are enthusiastically pursuing those objectives.

As far as the "institutionalised" side of the coin is concerned, the courts, the legal fraternity and various NGO's are actively engaged in the establishment of a proper human rights jurispondence based on, in particular, the principles laid down by the current Chapter 3. Soon, the Constitutional Court will provide further impetus to this process.

Various southern African courts have already shown their willingness and ability to give effect to the principles of municipal instruments of human rights as well as the principles of international humanitarian law. Since the inception of the 1993 Constitution, South African courts have followed suit. An

amazing number of judgments based on the provisions of Chapter

3 have been delivered, and are still being delivered by our courts.

The jurisprudence which has thus been established should not be disregarded nor neutralized by unnecessarily tampering with the core elements of the current Chapter 3. The Chapter should be utilized as a basis to work from in the process of the development of an encompassing and fully-fledged bill of rights.

- PAC



PARLIAMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

17 February 1995

PAC PRELIMINARY SUBMISSIONS ON WHAT ARE "UNIVERSALLY ACCEPTED FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS."

- It is generally accepted that the International Bill of Rights consists of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and its additional Protocols and the Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights.
- 2. The three International Instruments cover Civil and Political Rights, Socio-Economic Rights and Solidarity Rights.
- In addition, we submit that the African Charter on Rights and Freedoms of 1981, is relevant to South Africa. It makes the unique contribution of not only according rights but also imposing obligations on individuals and Society.
- 4. We submit therefore that, the term "Universally accepted fundamental Rights" mean the First generation, Second generation and Third generation of Rights. These rights are equally important and necessary. If there are any differences among them, they may be in the area of enforcement, limitation and suspension.

- First Report of Theme Committe 4 on Block 1 of Work Programme

FIRST REPORT OF THEME COMMITTEE 4 ON BLOCK 1 OF WORK PROGRAMME

Having agreed to the first block of the Theme Committee's Work Plan ie. Constitutional Principle II, the Committee has the pleasure of submitting the following report.

All parties made submissions in relation to the meaning and interpretation of Principle II and their approach to a Bill of Rights in the Constitution and these are included (in document).

As at 16 January 1995, forty-seven (47) submissions were received from the public and civil society.

None of these addressed the content of Principle II (the content of Block 1). The submissions addressed the various "rights" that are going to be worked on in Blocks 2 to 10. The views of these submissions will be processed and included in future reports.

As far as the specific wording on clarifying phrases in the Principle is concerned:

- 1. <u>Everyone</u> shall enjoy ... "(Whether the term "everyone" includes juristic persons, structured and unstructured groups, and organs of civil society, etc)
- 1.1 <u>Contentious Issue(s)</u>: "Everyone"
- 1.1.1 The ANC states that rights referred to are rights of born person(s) or natural persons. The Bill of Rights refers to rights enjoyed by human beings and even Chapter 3 refers primarily to rights of natural persons. The term "everyone" therefore excludes juristic person(s).
- 1.1.2 The NP, DP and IFP stated that they believed "everyone" should include juristic persons.
- 1.1.3 The ACDP stated that unborn persons should be included under the term "everyone".

Suggestion: The matter be discussed and debated in greater detail.

- 1.2 Contentious Issue(s): "Vertical and Horizontal Application of Rights"
- 1.2.1 The ACDP, ANC, DP, IFP and PAC supported a vertical and horizontal application of the Bill of Rights in principle.
- 1.2.2 The DP and FF said horizontal application should be approached cautiously.
- 1.2.3 The NP primarily supported vertical application, but were not against a extension of the application of the Bill, at the same time noting concern about the possible disruption of South Africa's Private Law system.

<u>Suggestion</u>: Specific rights shall be examined and the implications or consequences in terms of horizontal application shall be evaluated. Expert advice can be sought by individual parties if required.

2. "all universally accepted fundamental rights, freedoms and civil liberties" (which rights etc., qualify as universally accepted fundamental rights)

2.1 Non-Contentious Issue(s):

- 2.1.1 All parties agreed that the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights (1948) and other relevant Covenants on Human Rights, Civil Rights and Social and Political Rights can be used as important references for identifying universally accepted fundamental rights.
- 2.1.2 The parties will make submissions as to what they regard as universally accepted fundamental human rights.
- 2.2 <u>Contentious Issue(s)</u>: "Universally accepted fundamental rights..."
- 2.2.1 The NP is of the opinion that expert opinion shall first be obtained to interpret what can be regarded as universally accepted fundamental rights, but the ANC and other parties indicated that experts were not necessary to evaluate what the universally accepted fundamental rights were.
- 2.2.3 The DP believed that such a workshop could easily be accommodated within the schedule of ongoing meetings of the Theme Committee.

- 3. "entrenched and justiciable provisions"
- 3.1 Non-Contentious Issue(s):
- 3.1.1 The Bill of Rights should be entrenched, justiciable and enforceable.
- 3.1.2 All parties agreed that other organs of enforcement shall also be looked at eg. Human Rights Commission.
- 3.1.3 All parties supported a strong independent judiciary.
- 3.1.4 Parties agreed that there should be a provision allowing for further additions to be made to the Bill of Rights - As suggested by the FF and IFP).
- 3.2 Contentious Issue(s):
- 3.2.1 None
- 4. "after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3"
- 4.1 Non-Contentious Issue(s):
- 4.1.1 Most parties agreed that due consideration must be given to each right in Chapter 3 of the Interim Constitution, but they do not regard these rights as exhaustive.
- 4.1.2 The parties also agreed that they are not limited to the rights in Chapter 3 only.
- 5. General Discussion of Related Constitutional Principles such as I, III, V, IX, XI, XII, XIII(1), XXVIII, XXXIV
- 5.1 A preliminary discussion was held in which each party gave their perspective on the Principles.
- 5.2 It was agreed that detailed submissions on Principles relevant to the Bill of Rights would be made by parties if necessary.

- 6. Suggested approach as to the identification of rights not covered by Constitutional Principle II
- 6.1 All the parties agreed that this had been covered by discussions in paragraphs 1 and 2 (See Above).

7. Outstanding Issues

- 7.1 The Committee agreed that the outstanding issues as reflected above would be dealt with in the following way:
- 7.1.1 The Technical Committee would produce an opinion for the Theme Committee on the following issues:
 - i) <u>Everyone</u> shall enjoy ... "(Whether the term "everyone" includes juristic persons, structured and unstructured groups, and organs of civil society, etc)
 - ii) "after having given due consideration to inter alia the fundamental rights contained in Chapter 3"
- 7.1.2 The deadline for the above would be 17 February 1995.
- 7.1.3 The issue of what constitutes "universally accepted fundamental rights" would be dealt with in 2 stages as follows:
 - The political parties would submit submissions to the Theme Committee by the 17 February 1995.
 - ii) The Technical Committee would submit an opinion to the Theme Committee by the 22 February 1995.
- 7.1.4 The issue of "Vertical and Horizontal Application of Rights" would be dealt with as follows: Specific rights shall be examined and the implications or consequences in terms of horizontal application shall be evaluated. Expert advice can be sought by individual parties if required.
- 7.2 It was agreed that the Theme Committee would submit a additional report to the Constitutional Committee once the outstanding issues had been dealt with (as above).

FOR YOUR INFORMATION:

TO: THEME COMMITTEE SECRETARIES, LAW ADVISERS, TECHNICAL

EXPERTS, PANEL OF EXPERTS

FROM: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RESEARCH

DATE: 14/3/1995

RE: BOOKS AVAILABLE IN THE RESEARCH DEPARTMENT

The attached list contains monographs, periodicals and journals purchased by the Research Department. The list will be updated with recent purchases.

These materials may only be used on the premises of Regis House. Contact Derek Powell (403 2213) or Stoncey Lebethe (403 2264) for further details concerning their use.

Also available are:

The Stellenbosch Law Review (all issues)
The South African Journal or Human Rights (backdated 1988)
The South African Law Journal (backdated 1993)

On order is:

Blaausteins 'Constitutions of the Countries of the World'

The Department will publish a list of books on key areas of the field which are available in Parliament's library or through interlibrary loan.

BOOK LIST ONE

13/3/1995

These monographs, periodicals, and journals are available in the Research Department. They may only be used on the premises at Regis House. Contact Derek Powell (403 2213) or Stoncey Lebethe (403 2264) for further information.

B de Villiers	'Birth of a Constitution" (2 copies). Juta 1994
Du Plessis & Corder	'Understanding South Africa's Transitional Bill of Rights'. Juta 1994
W Lockhart et al	'Ameriçan Casebook Series.' 'Constitutional Law.'
G Sartori	'Comparative Constitutional Engineering'. McMillan 1994.
B de Villiers et al	'Human Rights: documents that paved the way'. HSRC 1992.
Patel et al	'Human Rights: Fundamental Instruments of Documents'. Butterworths 1994.
Corder et al	'A Charter for Social Justice'. 1992.
Cachalia et al	'Fundamental Rights in the New Constitution". Juta 1994.
B de Villiers	'Electoral Procedures in Africa: Five Core Studies Guidelines for SA'. KAS/May 1993.
G Duncan (ed)	'Democratic Theory and practice'. Cambridge 1983.
	Intergovernmental Relations Guidelines for SA (KAS). Sept. 1993.
B de Villiers	'Regional Government in the new South Africa'. HSRC 1992.
B de Villiers	An electoral system for the new SA 1991. J/Juridical Science 16(2).

A Loxton	'Public Functions and public Institutions: A criteriological approach to the Functional Structure of Central Government Administration in a Liberal Democracy, with Particular reference to South Africa.' Journal of Public Administration 1994 29(2) June.
	KAS Occasional Paper Sept 1994.
Prof Yvonne Mokgoro	Traditional Authority and Democracy in the Interim South African Constitution.
Alastair McIntosh	The Rural Local Government Debate in South Africa.
C French	Functions and Powers of Traditional Leaders.
Dion Basson	'South Africa's Interim Constitution.' Juta 1994.
Rautenbach/Malherbe	'Wat staan in die Grondwet?' (+Eng) RAU.
R Licht & B de Villiers (eds)	South Africa's Crisis of Constitutional Democracy. Can the US Constitution help?
SECTION OF CHILD	South African Defence Review.
B de Villiers	Belgium. The Protection of Minorities (Reading materials). Nov. 1993.
B de Villiers & J Sindane	Regionalism (HSRC) 1993.
Crawford (eds)	The Rights of Peoples, 1992.
	Dictionary of legal words and phrases vols. 1-4
	Constitutional Law Reports Butterworths vols. 1-4.
	Dictionary of legal words and phrases 5th Cumulative Supplement.
L M du Plessis	Interpretation of Statutes.

W ON Process	Journal of contemporary Roman Dutch Law vols. 1-4.
	A practical guide to Labour Law.
	Is it in force? 1981 - 1994.
Dirk Van Zyl Smit	SA Prison Law Practice
Yvonne Burns	Media Law
Ed. Robert Licht et al	SA's Crisis of Constitutional Democracy.
Ed. Ebrahim Patel	Worker Rights.
Ed. Kruger & Currin	Interpreting a Bill of Rights.
Lorenzo Togni	Human Rights.
John Grogan	Collective Labour Law.
Cheadle et al	Current Labour Law.
Tertius Geldenhuys	Introduction to Security Law.
Butterworths	Survey of SA Law.
J C Bekker G Carp	Selection of Statutes Constitutional Law 2nd Ed.
Marinus Wiechers	Administrative Law
Patel & Watters	Human Rights: Fundamental Instruments & Documents.
	Law of Criminal Procedure and Evidence Casebook vols 1 & 2.
	Strafprosesreg en bewysregvonnisbundel vols 1 & 2.
Dugard	International Law A South African Perspective.

Ed by Charlie Jeffery & Peter Savigear	German Federalism Today. 1991.
Jürg Steiner	European Democracies. 3ed. Longman. 1995.
Colin R Munro.	Studies in Constitutional Law. Butterworths 1987.
Sacha Prechal and Noreen Burrows	Gender Discrimination Law of the European Community. Dartmouth. 1990.
Michael Walzer	Spheres of Justice. Blackwell. 1994.
David Pannick	Sex Discrimination Law. Clarendon Press. 1985.
Nicholas Gillett	The Swiss Constitution can it be exported? 1989.
Erik Allardt et al	Nordic Democracy. Copenhagen 1981.
	International Handbook of the Ombudsman (Evolution and present function) and (Country Surveys)
David McQuoid	Democracy for all. Mason Street Law. 1994.
David McQuoid	Human Rights for all. LHR 1991.





